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Notice to the Shareholders of

. oleasn i s GUIF International Services Q.P.S.C.

Gulf International Services ost

We are pleased to invite you to attend the Company’s Ordinary General Assembly Meetings to be held on Sunday,
10th March 2024 at 3:30 p.m. Doha Time, in Al-Rayyan Ballroom, Sheraton Hotel, Doha. In case a quorum is not
met, a second meeting will be held on Wednesday, 27th March 2024 at the same location at 10 PM.

1. Listen to the Chairman’s message for the financial year ended 31 1.

December 2023.

2. Approve the Board of Directors’ report on GIS’ operations and financial
performance for the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

3. Listen and approve the Auditor’s Report on GIS’ consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

4. Discuss and approve GIS’ consolidated financial statements for the

financial year ended 31 December 2023.

Present and approve 2023 Corporate Governance Report.
6. Approve the Board’s recommendation for a dividend payment of

QR 0.15 per share for 2023, representing 15% of the nominal share

value.

7. Absolve the Board of Directors from liability for the year ended 31

December 2023 and fix their remuneration.

8. Appoint the external auditor for the financial year ending 31 December

2024 and approve their fees.

9. Board of Directors election for the term of three years (2024-2027)

Sheikh Khalid bin Khalifa Al-Thani 6.
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Gulf International Services

The Board of Directors is pleased to present its annual review of the financial
and operational performance of Gulf International Services for the financial
year 2023.

Macroeconomic overview

In the dynamic landscape of the oil and gas services industry, the sector’s
trajectory remains intricately linked to the fluctuations in oil prices and the
industry’s broader expansion, driven by substantial capital investments.
Throughout the year, the industry was marked by optimism, with producers
eagerly eyeing strategic expansions, particularly in the region. This prevailing
enthusiasm not only reflects the industry’s positive sentiment but also
underscores promising growth prospects for the oil & gas services sector.
This collective drive for expansion underpins the sector’s resilience, making
it poised for a robust future.

Business and Market Expansion Updates

- Drilling business

In the drilling segment, positive developments persisted due to the
implementation of improved day-rates for two of the offshore rigs in addition
to the successful redeployment of specific on-shore rigs that were previously
off-contract which helped boost the overall rig utilization, However, these
gains were partially offset due to the planned maintenance of two offshore
rigs, a necessary step in ensuring their continued optimal performance and
operations. Throughout the year, the segment achieved successful contract
renewals for various offshore rigs, including the sea drill joint venture, securing
extensions ranging from 2 to 3 years. These renewals will not only enhance
the segment’s financial outlook but also will strengthen its long-term stability.
Furthermore, the segment continued its international presence by securing
the extension of its liftboat contract in KSA. further enhancing asset utilization
rates and building international footprints for the segment.

- Aviation business

The aviation segment witnessed an increase in business performance,
directly correlated with increased flying activities on both domestic and
international fronts. Furthermore, the segment benefitted from contributions
from MRO (Maintenance, Repair, and Overhaul). These key drivers propelled
the segment’s overall performance, showcasing our unwavering dedication to
operational excellence and strategic positioning in the global aviation market.
Throughout the year, GHC excelled in securing several new medium-to-short
term contracts across various regions. This accomplishment underscores our
ability to build and maintain robust business alliances in diverse markets. This
expansion further solidifies our global footprint within the aviation industry,
establishing Gulf Helicopters as a trustworthy partner in delivering services
globally.

- Insurance business

The insurance segment’s robust performance is underpinned by its expansion
in the medical line of business, focusing on contracts with higher premiums

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Gulf International
Services Q.P.S.C.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Gulf International Services Q.P.S.C. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) as at 31 December 2023 and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards.

What we have audited

The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information.

DR

Basis for opinion

We d d our audit in with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report.

‘We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are 1ndependenl of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional

luding International Ind d Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the State of Qatar. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with IESBA Code and the ethical requirements in the State of Qatar.

Each shareholder shall have the right to attend the meeting of
the General Assembly and shall have a number of votes that
equals the number of shares owned thereby. Resolutions shall
be passed by an absolute majority of shares duly represented
therein, without prejudice to the provisions of the Company’s
Articles of Association.

2. Minors and the interdicted persons shall be represented by their
legal guardians.

3. Any shareholder that is a company may authorize any one
person to act as its representative at any meeting of the General
Assembly.

4. Attendance by proxy at the General Assembly meeting is
permitted, provided that the proxy is a shareholder and that the
proxy is specific and in writing. A shareholder may not appoint a
Board Director to act as his proxy at the meeting of the General
Assembly. Proxy form can be downloaded from the Company’s
website: www.gis.com.qga.

5. A shareholder may act as proxy for one or more shareholders of

the Company as contemplated under the Company’s Articles of

Association. In all cases, the number of shares held by the proxy

in this capacity shall not exceed (5%) of the Company’s share

capital.

and lower claims. Moreover, proactive measures are being taken to explore
fresh opportunities within the domestic retail and SME markets. Concurrently,
the segment’s investment portfolio demonstrated growth, aligning with the
favorable trends observed in our overall investment portfolio. Furthermore,
Al-Koot is actively and carefully participating in the recently implemented
mandatory health insurance scheme mandated by the government.

- Catering business

The catering segment witnessed an improved set of results, driven by the
successful merger of Amwaj with Shagab and Atyab. This strategic move has
not only created a national champion in catering but has also positioned the
combined entity as the go-to player for all large-scale catering and industrial
accommodation needs in Qatar and potentially the wider region.

In line with our announcement on 21st September 2023 and the Extra-
Ordinary General Assembly approval on 13th March 2023, the new
strategic shareholders of Amwaj, in collaboration with GIS, have officially
set the merger’s economic effective date as 1st January 2023. The board
diligently executed the merger, dissolving the previous board of Amwaj and
appointed new board members from respective shareholders. Furthermore,
a CEO was appointed for the newly merged entity, bringing together top-tier
management and industry expertise under one roof. This strategic restructure
will significantly boost our operational efficiency and further position us to be
a leading player in the catering industry.

Our strategy going forward

GIS is strategically expanding its market presence in Qatar and international
markets as applicable for each segment. Additionally, GIS is dedicated
to strategically repositioning its core businesses by ensuring ongoing cost
efficiencies and optimizing asset utilization. These initiatives empower our
segments to maximize their domestic and international strengths, aiming
to create significant shareholder value. In addition, the Group intends to
strategically build new revenue streams by capitalizing on opportunities
associated with Qatar’s North Field expansion.

Achieving cost efficiencies and asset utilization

The optimization of costs and resources stands as a core objective for our
Group companies, reflecting our commitment to transforming into leaner and
highly efficient entities. Striving for stringent cost discipline, our entities are
engaged in a continuous journey towards enhanced efficiency.

In terms of asset utilization, our Group companies place a strong emphasis
on maximizing asset utilization while upholding the highest standards of
quality and safety. In the drilling segment, contract rig utilization reached
95%, showcasing our dedication to optimal operational efficiency. Similarly,
within the aviation segment, there was a notable improvement in total fleet
flying hours by 20%, indicating increased flying activity in both domestic and
international operations. These achievements underscore our unwavering
focus on operational excellence.

Overview

Key Audit Matters.
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Financial results

The Group posted a net profit of QR 392 million, up by 30% compared to
last year. The Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023
improved by 17% compared to 2022 and amounted to QR 3.5 billion for the
year ended 31 December 2023, compared to QR 3 billion for last year. For
the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group reported an EBITDA of QR
898 million.

The profitability mainly improved on account of better results from all the
segments. The drilling segment witnessed recovery on account of higher rig
rates and improved asset utilization. While the aviation segment benefited
from stronger flying activity, coupled with better contributions from the MRO
business. Within the insurance segment, improved results were mainly
supported by higher revenue coupled with recovery of investment portfolio.
The Group’s total assets increased by 3% during the year, to reach QR
10.4 billion as at 31 December 2023. On the liquidity front, the closing cash,
including short-term investments, stood at QR 1.3 billion. The Group reported
a total debt of QR 4.4 billion as at 31 December 2023.

GDI Loan Restructure:

The successful completion of the debt restructuring deal with our lenders
represents a significant achievement for GDI. With a new long-term tenor
of 25 years and a 35% balloon, this restructuring will allow GDI to gradually
reduce its financial obligations over the debt tenor. This accomplishment
marks a major milestone in our efforts to enhance the company’s financial
position, providing increased flexibility, improved liquidity, and opportunities
for strategic investments. Moreover, it results in immediate cost savings on
borrowing, enabling GDI to better navigate macroeconomic volatility.

This achievement underscores the substantial progress made in our financial
and operational turnaround objectives, emphasizing our dedication to
strengthening the Group’s balance sheet and maximizing enterprise value.
Dividends

Given a strong recovery in terms of the Group’s financial performance, the
Board of Directors recommends a total annual dividend distribution of QR
279 million for the year ended 31 December 2023, equivalent to QR 0.15 per
share and representing 71% of the Group’s net profits.

Conclusion

The Board of Directors expresses its gratitude to His Highness Sheikh Tamim
bin Hamad Al Thani, the Amir of the State of Qatar, for his wise guidance
and strategic vision. We also express our gratitude to GIS clients for their
unwavering trust and confidence, as well as the senior management of the
Group companies for their relentless dedication and hard work. Additionally,
we extend our thanks to our esteemed shareholders for their continued trust
and confidence in us.
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reperforming, on a sample basis, an
independent estimation of IBNR for the
material lines of business;

Therefore, the ultimate amount of claims, could -
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difficulty in projecting reserves subject to
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Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Board of
Directors’ Report (but does not include the financial and our auditor’s report
thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the complete Annual Report, which
is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon
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‘When we read the complete Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of the Directors and those charged with ¢ ance for the
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with IFRS Standards and with the requirements of the Oatar Commercial

Companies Law number 11 of 2015, as amended by Law number 8 of 2021 and for such internal control as the
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material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Directors are for the

n ing the i financial the Direct ible for the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, rnatters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with are ible for the Group’s reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a materml mlssla(ement When lt exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are material if, they could
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determine the changes in key
namely, discount rates and day rates that
would result in an impairment. We
considered whether such changes were
reasonably likely;

- Wealso assessed the adequacy of the
related disclosures provided in Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements, in
particular the sensitivity disclosures in
relation to reasonably possible changes in

financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise ional j and maintain pr
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material mi: of the i financial whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve forgery, i or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Directors.
« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the d financial
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(ALL AMOUNTS ARE EXPRESSED IN QATARI RIYALS ‘000 UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regardmg the financial mformatlon of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the d financial We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

‘We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

‘We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independ; and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the d financial f the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(ALL AMOUNTS ARE EXPRESSED IN QATARI RIYALS ‘000 UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
For the year ended 31 December

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMEN’

Further, as required by the Qatar Commercial Companies Law number 11 of 2015, as amended by Law
number 8 of 2021 we report that:

- We have ined all the i ion we for the purpose of our audit;
- The Company has carried out a physical verification of inventories at the year-end in accordance with
observed principles;

= The Company has maintained proper books of account and the consolidated financial statements are in
agreement therewit

- The financial information included in the Board of Directors' report is in agreement with the books and
records of the Company; an

- Nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that the Company has breached any of the
provisions of the Qatar Commercial Companies Law number 11 of 2015, as amended b
2021 or of its Articles of ‘which woul affect the reported results of its operations
or its consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2023.

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers — Qatar Branch
Qatar Fi ial Market

number 120155
Mark Menton
Auditor’s registration number 364

Doha, State of Qatar
14 February 2024

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(ALL AMOUNTS ARE EXPRESSED IN QATARI RIYALS ‘000 UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
For the year ended 31 December

Note 2023 202
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Continuing operations (Restated)” R 2023 2022
& op (Restated)*
Couorsates ey Ghonsem GiedThem
Groms profit from non-insurance operations = GorRor “Hios: Cash flows from operating activities
Note 31 2023 31 December 2022 1January 2022 Insurance revenue 25.2.2 1,173,800 s (Loss) / pro fit before' income tax
> > Insurance service expense 2522 (886.803) (660,680) Continuing operations 424,933 315,386
(Restated) (Restated) Netexpense from contracts held 231 (216.850) Ga1a84) isconti ; « ) 6
e Pty e ot Bir Discontinued operations 24,237 72
Assets Gross profit and net i service results 671,963 616,747 Adj for:
Non-current assets Finance (expense)/income from insurance contracts issued R o Depreciation of property and equipment 6 351,238 347,473
Property and equipment 6 5,506,609 5,560,956 5,591,281 Einance income/(expense) from reinsurance contracts held 54797 G8.500) Tmpairment loss on property and equipment 6 7,316 2,202
; ot insurance finance Income / (expense; 7 11162 | )
Gooduill 7 - 303,559 303,559 Net insuran / (expense) s Sros Loss on sale and write-off of property and equipment 4,009 1,053
Right-of-use assets 8 28,386 49,571 65,664 Other gains/(losses) — net (19,263) (26,252) Depreciation of right-of-use assets 8 13,701 31,166
General and administrative expenses (192,548) (166,113)
Contract assets 13 13,104 13,104 9,464 Net gaing on investments in debt securits at Fvoct ~ " Share of profit of equity-accounted investees (24,798) (17,577)
Equity-accounted investees 10 390,052 28,088 12,078 Net fair value gaim/(0ss) on financial assets at FVTPL 21,028 @B8on Loss from the disposal of a subsidiary 7 26,279 -
Financial assets at FVTOCI 1 367,949 306,592 418,658 Net monetary (loss) / gain arising from hyperinflation .. S PSS Write-down of inventories due to slow-moving and obsolete stock 763 1,554
6,306,100 6,261,870 6,400,704 o ing profit 534.961 Ga2.368 Net impairment loss / (reversal) on financial assets 13 1,341 (3.353)
Finance income . e a5 Provision for employees' end of service benefits 21 16,236 24,625
Current assets Finance costs a2 Czo5.262) GBo.376) Net (loss) / gain in fair value of financial investments at FVTPL (21,928) 25,897
Inventories 12 440,351 393,170 284,088 e o e rotite of equity investees D e Net gain from sale of financial investments (313) (3,529)
Financial assets at FVTPL 11 469,342 438,185 420,689 Profit before income tax o =s:222) 3is.8e Profit distribution from managed investment funds 27 (1,655) (3,652)
Trade and other receivables 13 870,544 1,029,173 1,008,798 Profit for the year from continuing opera 15852 Bonaza Dividend income 27 (4,928) (3,543)
Other assets 18 149,616 120,833 102,859 (L) / Profit from discontinued operation (attributable to the Income tax benefit recognized pursuant to MOU 27 (5,723) (5,688)
Reinsurance contract assets 25.2.1 775,666 668,446 677,901 pebarcholders of the (za.237) _zze Finance income 34.1 (70,436) (35,817)
Short-term investments 14 718,793 746,126 348,632 o forthe year aonors som9 Finance costs - leases 34.2 202 535
Other bank balances 15.1 47,079 48,619 48,619 o Y Sl ibutable to: e somaia Finance costs — loans and borrowings 211,709 185,331
Cash and cash equivalents 15 530,107 347,828 300,788 Ne interests G70) et Finance costs — decommissioning 20 180 230
4,001,498 3,792,380 3,192,374 291015 ZomIob Net monetary gain arising from hyperinflati 2,924 (20,759)
Total assets 10,307,598 10,054,250 9,593,078 Earnings per share Operating profit before working capital changes 906,813 842,260
Basic and diluted carnings per share from continuing: operations . .
of the Compan; ©o.224 0.163 ng capital
Eoumy D LIABILITIES Basie and diluied comings pen share fromdiscontinued (Increase) in inventories (61,712) (107,528)
quit of the Compan; . (o.013) (0.000) (Increase) in other assets (28,783) (17,974)
Share capital 16 1,858,409 1,858,409 1,858,409 i harders of the ’L‘Sﬁfp"“ share feom profi antibutable© s o.211 063 decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables 27,8 (17,022)
Legal reserve 17(a) 394,367 384,339 377,308 o (Increase) / decrease in reinsurance contract assets (107,220) 9,455
General reserve 17(b) 74,516 74,516 74,516 ote =i Restatedr Increase in trade and other payables 79,620 71,503
Translation reserve 17(c) (23,118) (25,961) (54,719) Other comprehensive income Increase in insurance contract liabilities 172,171 50,987
Fair value reserve 17(d) (18,409) (27,646) 3,786 Items that are ormay be reclassified to profit or loss Increase in contract liabilities (14,590) 11,143
Retained earnings 1,551,370 1,305,244 1,077,214 it other comprehansive meome |t fairvatue o237 27,902) Cash flows d from i iviti 973,417 842,824
Eglmty attributable to shareholders of s (500 . Net instruments at FVOCI reclassified to proh( or loss - (3.520) Social and sports contribution paid (7,251) (1,351)
. e company 35 azylgg) 3, (»91 21) 3,33 (‘151;] including effect of hyp -mcome e ‘:‘:;g pl ' end of service benefits paid 21 (15,571) (13,856)
Towl interests 3536, 4653 3638 g 5o 333 391 G Total income for the year 203.605 299,525 Net cash flows generated from operating activities 950,595 827,617
otal equity ,836, 628, 336,
Total comprehensive income for the period Investing activities
attributable tor
]Ij,l:lgl“mfﬁ biliti Shareholders of the Company 403 8ss 299.639 Acquisition of property and equipment 6 (333,300) (275,987)
on-curvent Habriities 05655 599,525 Acquisition of financial investments (62,883) (306,881)
e i ; ] g el Totat comprehnsine ncome or the period atributab o Net movement in short-term investments 27,333 (397.494)
Loans and borrowings 19 4,138,72 2,633,625 3 92‘505 A A A o o Finance income received 63,203 35,794
Contract liabilities 2,730 2,730 1,820 °°“"““‘"g e, o 208799 Proceeds from sale and maturity of financial investments 15,051 352,203
Deferred tax liabilities 14,672 19,629 10,796 403.605 299,525 Proceeds from sale of property and equipment = 1,228
Provision for decommlsslomng costs 20 2 45,899 45,669 0 Note 37 regarding datails of the restarementa Profit distribution from managed i funds 27 1,655 3,652
Provision for end of service benefits 21 80,668 112,028 101,259 Proceeds from sale of a joint venture 3,537 -
4,259,933 2,821,343 3,868,196 . Amwaj’s cash at disposal 7 (127,414) -
’ONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY i + B
@ liabiliti (AL AMOUNTS ARE EXPRESSED IN QATARI RIYALS ‘000 UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED) Dividends from equity-accounted investee 0 3,920 1,567
urrent liabilities For the year ended 31 December Dividends received 1,691 3,543
Leas; lladbllmesbl 9 5,250 3?;239 28,868 owners Net cash used in investing activities (407,207) (582,375)
Dividends payable 23 47,079 48,619 50,429 Forcign Non . .
Loans and borrowings 19 268,102 1,734,430 674,156 Share Legal  General  tramslation  Fairvalue  Retained controlling  Total Financing activities
Trade and other payables 22 638,705 693,035 602,948 copltel  reserve  reseve reserve reserve  carmings  Total Inereste equily Principal elements of lease payments (5,951) (19,513)
Insurance contract liabilities 2522 1,251,876 1,079,705 1,028,718 e s s s o0 wme o o st Proceeds from loans and borrowings 20,440 106,288
Contract liabilities - 14,500 3,447 mpacton th ntalappiaton of . . . . . P o . o Repayment of loans and borrowings (3,872) (143,323)
2,211,012 3,604,318 2,388,566 Bestemens E'Nme ) - - - e 17459 8576 - e Dividends paid to unclaimed dividends account (185,841) (1,810)
Total liabilities 6,470,945 6,425,661 6,256,762 Gematedy VI iy s e - [ i:ﬁ::zz costs g::g - lle:as:: and borrovings “89(:3:; (m(gggg
Total equity and liabilities 10,307,598 10,054,250 9,593,078 Profitfortheyear : : R e o oo o vt T - e . Y
*Refer to Note 37 regarding details of the restatements 10':lal culv\pmh‘ensn’e l:\mme/ a ) . e Net eash flows used in financing activities (364,928) (200,829)
Gow fo thevear - - - s G o 299638 o e
;l::w:(l i\:r:: f:':m:l'"a" (Note 22) N 7,03 N (7.250) (7,:5})
alance at 31 December 2032 - i i 178,460 41
These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and signed on its ety ™ Lt ot ase so0) __mmest) _nasass_asaboon et Nf‘f" c‘“f"‘&e in cash md}f”h eq“wa‘em; b e 4 223
behalf by the following on 14 February 2024: Balance at 1 January 2023 1858400 384330 74,516 (@5.960  (7646) 1365244 3.628.001 @12) 3628580 Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash el LD -027
Total comprehensioe neome: - " " o Cash and cash equi at 1 January 347,828 300,788
Frofitfor heyett - ncome : : : P T -+ ) ER Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 15 530,107 347,828
g e neome for . - - B o) aossos “Refer to Note 37 - ) . -
Socialfund contbution (Nt 22) [ . - S bmm Como ~ oo Non-cash investing additions relating to right of use assets excluded from the cashflows amounted to QR 28 million
Khalid Bin Khalifa Al-Thani Saad Rashid Al-Muhannadi ransactionswithshareholders of ) (2022: QR 15 million). Other non-cash investing activities relate to the disposal of Amwaj, refer to Note 7.
Chairman Vice Chairman o a¥iared o 5 o 5 o (85840 85840 - amssan
e e comber s02; ISR SR by GO S R s a6avess Cashflows relating to operations are din Note 7.

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(ALL AMOUNTS ARE EXPRESSED IN QATARI RIYALS ‘000 UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

1. REPORTING ENTITY

Gulf International Services Q.P.S.C. (the "Group™ is a Company incorporated on 13 February 2008 in the State of Qatar
or the commercial registration number 3820 Shareholding Company. The principal activity of the Group

s io gperatc as a hiolding compan

new Qatar Commercial &

has been changed to, Qnturl UbTiC Shareholding Company (G.P S.C 1 501

in Doha, State of Qat:

- The registored office of the Group is situated

Thess consclidated financial statements comprise of the Group and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group).
The Group is primarily involved in provision of drilling insurance and reinsurance and catering services. The
Provision of catering services was discontinued on 16 October 2053 (refer to Note 7

©On 26 May 2008, Qatar Energy listed 70% of the Group's issued share capital on Qatar Exchange. An extraordinary general
assembly heid of 3’ November 2012 dpproved the amendments to i icles of Association in which I

Timit of Gone i i Social G uen: p‘.r(‘hL instr
e Gl o e onomic AT, Garar Encrms diested S05% o1 5te stakd in the Greap 1o GRSTA

e

These consolidated financial statements compriss the financial statements of the Group and below stated unlisted wholly
cd direct subsidia t the end of the reporting date.

Sharcholding

Country of  Semment
incorporati
on 2023 2022
Name of the compan:

Al Koot ompany P. Qatar Insurance 100% 100%

Gulf Helicopters Company (Qatari Private Shareholding Aviation
Qatar 100% 100%

omr Dnllu\g International Limited (Qata Drilling
52 Company) Qatar 100% 100%
Ammwa) Cateriag Serie Qatar i i 30% 100%

7buring the year, the group deconsolidated Amwaj Catering which was previously wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.
“The details of the transaction are disclosed in Note

rect held through above subsidiaries on a line-
[ s Hfoegtotot R ok TV TR A TR er /3 o Aot RS ety o vy Rt

Estimates and assumptions

Fair value of retained interest

During the year the Group disposed 70 est in one of its Subsidiaries representing the catering segment and retained
it 5% which o Deen recomntoed at fiv vate.

The Group applied judgment with the support of an independent valuer in order to determine the fair values of the
ini ities and the fai part of ional p i ion using di hfl

(Note 7).

Impairment of non-financial assets - Rigs

The Group is required to undertake an test for impairment if events or changes in indicate that
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Impairment testing is an arca involving management judgment, requiring
as to 5 of be ¥ the net present value of future cash flows derived
from such assets using cash flow projections which have been di e net
present value of the future cash ALSlimptions are required to be made th reapect of hihly uncertain matters,
including management's expectations of:
- venue growth rates:

 long term growth rates range during discrete period and terminal period;
- the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks involved.

The recoverable amount is most sensitive to revenue growth assumption for certain rigs and the discount rate used for the
discounted cash flow model

The impairment test requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units which requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those.

Refer to Note 6 for assumptions used and further details.

Provision for expected credit I

of financial assets

ANDARE

CATIONS

The mroup, applicd the following standards and amendments for the first time for its
Commencing 1 Tanuary

Contracts

= c‘uon — amendments to IAS 1z

: SHASY and TERS Pr wtement =
The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognized in prior and current periods and are not
expoctod Lo smnifenntly affect the fatire reporing periods, cxeept for the new Fequirements o 2 Thsiirance

Contraces!

a2 IFRS 17 INSURANCE CONTRACTS'

1FRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Cons
Somtractand B esimen Contra e Wit Gl parieipation fentires ¢ BIeS)
approach 1o each group of insurance contract

fiets and s effective for annual periods hesinning on or after 1 January 2oa3. IS

T Group his applied the fall Fetrospective

e Group issucs insurance contracts that transior insurance risk. Insurance contracts are those contracts whe:
Fance Hsk from the policyl eolaes If & apeaifiod

Lol Wfects the
A or regulation, are L
Sfors fnairance ||sk [
BoSsibiiy of o loss on aluc basis) and whether the accepte:

p uses

i) the’Group of remaining contracts, Ths«st: Drul‘xtub\h(v mroups represent the level oF smsregation at which
TnSurance contracts are Initially rocognised and measur hot subsequently roconside
For each portfolio of h €1 at which reasomable and supportable
Irtorimation b alablo T aesas whethen those comtracts nre Shorous ot intial e whether

have a sign

s This level of racts: The

T e
Wficiently homogencous and will e Allocated 16 the same

sroup without

Portfolios of reinsurance contracts held are assessed for aggregation of contracts

comtracts Held the oD ARELCaAtes TImEUTEReE ContTaGEE
A Cnuial cohor Tto srolips of () cohtriers for whicn there is & net gain ot mitial
ore i no of a net gain arising

Contracts in the portrotio, if any

Beneficial ownership interest The impairment model under IFRS-9 requires forward looking information, which is based on assumptions for the future
Country of T 81 December 5 December of different nd how these drivers will affect c cnch other. Ttalso requires management o assign
Entity . i i 3 zo=3 2ome wlt to various of ey input in measuring an
nd entails considerable judgements it is an estimate of the hkehhcnd nf default over o given time horizon, the
1 30% 100% Lakulnnonofwh sh includes historical data, of fut The used are
1 50% disclosed in Not
h 9% 29%
1 - 9% 2.4 Significant judgements and estimates in applying IFRS 1
2 - do% =% Significant judg: ts and estimate pplying IFRS 17
s 2 froosg 100% > issues insurance contracts ransfer insurance risk. Insurance contracts ar se contracts wi
Al Maha aviation Company A 2 o5 100% The Group s ance contract: ekh}n transfo ance rislc. Insurance contracts are those contracts where the
U Tl comiars Tavestment & Feasing = risk from U by agreeing t if 2 specifie
el Loo% - dversely affects the, In malking this all rights and
5 from law or are i basis. The judgement
1 Equity accounted investee
s 10 aBsess whether & CORtract ttansfers Insurance rek (that 1o, if there 18 & scenario with tance in which the

= indirect subsidiary

Where necessary. adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subs
line with those used by & roup. All intra-group transactions, balances,
consolidation.

accounting policies in
ere eliminated on

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

been prepared in with the IFRS as issued

by Tnternational Accounting Standard Board (TASE).

2.2 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the following:

= Equity instruments classified as Fair Valu ther Comprehensive Income (“FVIOCI™ and Fair Value
s CFVTPLY), are measured at falr valu
< heen “addiusted to reflect the effects of hyperinflation to

hyperinflationary economy hav
clrrent at the end of the reporting date as requires

DY TAS =

INTATIONAL CURRENCY

2.3 FUNCTIONAL AND PRES

@ ctional and presentation currency
Ttems u-u.]uv.k.d in the financial statements of cach of the group’s entiti

s are measured using the currency of the primary.
ic environment in which the entity operates Cthe functional cu

ency’.

an Transactions and balances
Foreign currenc: ions arc into the the exchans < dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulung Trom the serlement of such nansacuons and from the
transiation of monetary assets and liabilities Genominated 1 forelgn currencies at year end exchange rates, are generally
recognised in profit or 10ss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to in £ profit or loss, within finance
Costa. All other foreign exchange Fains and 1osses ate presented in the statement of profit or 1o4s on & net basis within other
gains/(osses).

tems that are
date when th wwas determined. Mrransiatio
as part of the fair value zain or loss. For example, Casscts and Tabilit
equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised In profit or Toss as part of the fair value gain o
Ky e AT SRR A R AR o
income are recognised in other comprenensive ncome.

¢ fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
n differcnces on assets and liabilitics carricd at fair value ave reported
o sach

have restated Refer to Note

37 for more details.

financial relating to the o

2.4 USE OF JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

ha and estimates that affect the
appl;fanon of the Groun's ac«-n\:nnnﬁg et o The LTy Timounis of Astet Tab s, Tcome and cxbensct: Actuit
FeSUIts may differ from these cstimates

and are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised
Prospectivers:

Information about significant areas of v and eritical j in applying policies that
have th it CHeer om The s in the Fnancial are ibed as
Follows:

Judgements

Group applics significant judgment o detormine the functional currency of one of its subsidiarics which eperates in

Turkey (Redstar avaciiik AS). In its Groi the currency of the country whose

competitive forces and regulations mainly determine the sales prices of o rvices and the currency that mainly

influences labour, material and other costs of providing soods o Services IS along with othor fattore fe specified T TAS
Effocts of Change in Foreign Currency Rat

m

The Groun has concluded based on its assessment that Turlish Lira is the functional currency of its subsidiary Redstar
Havaeilik Hizmetle

Group has the possibility of a 1055 o a present value basis) and whether the accepted insurance rsk is significant.

Estimates of future cash flows to fulfil insurance contracts

In estimating future cash flows, the Group incorporates, in an unbiased way,

without undue cost or effort at the reporting date. This infermation Fhudton both baternal and catersal

historical data about claims and other experiences, up to reflct current expectations of future events. The estimates

Tature cash flows reflect the Group view of current condiions at the reporting date, as 1ong as the cstimates of any
Felevant market variables are consistont with observable market prices:

The extimates of theas furure cash flows sxe besed on expected
Which Cash Tows are cxpocted and the Drobabiliy that they’ wil Seeur oo at the measurement date. 10 making these
Cxpectations, the Group uses information about past cvents, current conditions and foreeasts of future conditions. The
Group's estimate of future cash flows is the mean of a range of scenarios that reflect the full range of possible outcomes

Each scenario specifies the amount, timing and probability of cash - The probability-weighted average of the future
cash flo using a the mean of a range of scenarios.

When estimating future cash flows, the Group takes into account current expeetations of future events that might affect

those cash flows. However, expectations of future changes in legislation that would change or discharge a present obligation

or ereate new obligations under existing contracts are not taken into account until the change in legislation is substantively
enacted, The Group also derives cost

the fulfilment of the n those for which the Group has discred ese include

Dy mente 1o (oF om Behalt o Bolicyholders, inourmee achuicition cach fows and Siher costs that are hewrred i folfiling

contract

Insurance acquisition cash flows arise from the activities of selling, underwriting and starting a group of contracts that
are directly attributable to the portfolio of contracts to which the group belongs. Other costs that are incurred in fulfilling
the contracts include claims handling, maintenance and administration costs, and
instalment pre; receivable witl e contract boundary
incurred in fulfilling contracts comprise both

vities, ot

recurring commissions payable on
are

ty-
e allocated to groups of

based costing and other fulfilment activities are
1y applied to all costs that have similar

< to
contracts using methods that are systematic and rational and consisten
characteristics. Other costs are recognised in profit or loss as they are ineurre

ws. the portfolio level or higher, they are allocated to groups
O ontracts. om0 Systematic basis. Tho Group hes dergemined that this method reotits 1o & Zyot and rational
allocation. Stmilar methods are consistently applied to allocate expenses of a similar nature. The Group performs regular
expense studies to determine the extent fo which fixed and variable overheads are directly attributable to fulfill the
insurance contracts.

Risk adjustment

Because the ris! ion for estimates are made on the degree of diversification
benefits and expected and in a way that reflects the Group 's degree of risk aversion.
roup estimates an adj for ial risk timat

Discount rate
The Group has adopted a bottom-up approach for dertving the yield curves, the starting point being the liquid risk-free
base_curves in the currencies in which the contracts are denominated. The final discount rate:

consideration 1o the following curves for liabilities dencminated in Qatart Rivals Cwhich will continue 1o be monttored,
compared, and assessed for appropriateness)

Reinsurance contracts held are assessed for aggregation requirements on an individual contract basis. The Group tracks
internal management information reflecting Histonenl experionces of such contracts performance. This information ix
uned Tor Seting pricing OF thode Coniracts such that they rehult in reinsurance contracts Hela s net cost position without
a Significant possibility of a net gain arising subsedu

“The Group holds reinsurance contracts that provide cove on the insurance contracts for claims incurred during a
accident Yearand arehecotnted for nder the TAN sinc The Group does not expect sEnificant variabity in the fifiment
Cash flows that would affect the measurement of the liability for remaining coverage under goncral measurement model

The Group assumes that no contracts are onerous at initial i unless facts and indicate
If facts And Gireumstances indicate that Some contracts are onorous, o ai
Onerous contracts from Facta: the Group assesnes the Hkelihood of changes in the

applicable facts and in the
PoSsibility of E onerous. This =

perigds in [yhether contracts have a significant

Thy General Measurement Model CGMME) is the default model to measure insurance contracts using updated estimates
4 astumptions that refect the tming of cash fows and any Telating to The remium

S ST St or the ensar et of the. by o R i covertue,

enitymiay ehoode to use Whon the premitim allecation Gpproach provideds measurement which is not materially aifferent
From that under the Seneral menstrement model CEAR CHAIHILY 1eats) or i the covernie poriod of each contract in the
Group of Insurance contracts 1s one year or loss.

The Group uses the PAA for contracts with a coverage period of one year or less for the measurement of LRC. Some
Contracts have a coverage poriod of more than onc voar, but passed the BAA olgibility tost.

oup applicd the PAA approach to all its insurance contracts which include mainly enersy, medical and other lines
ST huainess ARG to it TelnsurAnee contracts held.
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a) increased for premiums received in the period;
b) decreased for insurance acquisition cash flows paid in the period;
c) decreased for the amounts of expected premium receipts recognised as insurance revenue for the services provided
in the period; and
d) increased for the amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows in the period recognised as insurance service
expenses in the reporting period.
For reinsurance contracts held, at each of the subsequent reporting dates, the remaining coverage is:

a) increased for ceding premiums paid in the period;

b) decreased for net ceding commissions received in the period;

c¢) decreased for the expected amounts of ceding premiums and ceding commissions recognized as net reinsurance
expenses for the services received in the period

For the Liability for Incurred Claims “LIC”:

The Group estimates the liability for incurred claims and expenses as the fulfillment cash flows related to incurred claims
and expenses. The fulfillment cash flows are an explicit, unbiased, and probability-weighted estimate of the present value
of the future cash flows, within the contract boundary of a group of contracts, that will arise as the entity fulfill its obligation
under the insurance contracts, including a risk adjustment for non-financial risk. The Group disaggregates changes in the
risk adjustment for non-financial risk between insurance service result and insurance finance income or expenses.

The Group establishes insurance claims liabilities to cover the estimated liability for the cash flows associated with incurred
losses as at the balance sheet date, including claims not yet reported (“IBNR”) and loss adjustment expenses incurred with
respect to insurance contracts underwritten and reinsurance contracts placed by the Group. The ultimate cost of claims
liabilities is estimated by using generally accepted standard actuarial techniques.

The main assumption underlying these techniques is that the Group's past claims development experience can be used to
project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. As such, these methods extrapolate the development
of paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim (severity) and average number of claims (frequency) based on the
observed development of earlier years and expected loss ratios. Historical claims development is analyzed by accident year,
geographical area, as well as claim type.

Additional qualitative judgment is used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in the future (e.g., to reflect
one-off occurrences, changes in external or market factors such as public attitudes to claiming, economic conditions, levels
of claims inflation and legislation, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy features and claims handling
procedures) to arrive at the estimated ultimate cost of claims that present the probability-weighted expected value outcome
from the range of possible outcomes, taking into account all the uncertainties involved.

The Group has elected not to adjust the LRC for the effect of time value of money, as it expects the time between providing
each part of the coverage and the related premium due date to be one year or less. On the other hand, the Group has decided
to discount the LIC for the time value of money as some portfolios have significant amounts of claims paid after 12 months
of date of loss. Hence, for all contracts measured under the PAA, the Group has decided to allow for the time value of money
in estimating the Liability for Incurred Claims ("LIC").

The fulfillment cashflows are the current estimates of the future cash flows within the contract boundary of a group of
contracts that the Group expects to collect from premiums and pay out for claims, benefits and expenses, adjusted to reflect
the timing and the uncertainty of those amounts. As all contracts are measured under the PAA, unless the contracts are
onerous, the FCF are only estimated for the measurement of the LIC.

The estimates of future cash flows:

a) are based on a probability-weighted mean of the full range of possible outcomes;

b) are determined from the perspective of the Group, provided that the estimates are consistent with observable
market prices for market variables; and

c) reflect conditions existing at the measurement date.

An explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk is estimated separately from the other estimates. For contracts measured
under the PAA, unless the contracts are onerous, the explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk is only estimated for
the measurement of the LIC.

The estimates of future cash flows are adjusted using the current discount rates to reflect the time value of money and the
financial risks related to those cash flows, to the extent not included in the estimates of cash flows. The discount rates
reflect the characteristics of the cash flows arising from the companys of insurance contracts, including timing, currency
and liquidity of cash flows. The determination of the discount rate that reflects the characteristics of the cash flows and
liquidity characteristics of the insurance contracts requires significant judgement and estimation.

Risk of the Group’s non-performance is not included in the measurement of groups of insurance contracts issued. In the
measurement of reinsurance contracts held, the probability-weighted estimates of the present value of future cash flows
include the potential credit losses and other disputes of the reinsurer to reflect the non-performance risk of the reinsurer.
The Group uses consistent assumptions to measure the estimates of the present value of future cash flows for the company
of reinsurance contracts held and such estimates for the company’s of underlying insurance contracts.

Discount rates

The Group has adopted a bottom-up approach for deriving the yield curves, the starting point being the liquid risk-free
base curves in the currencies in which the contracts are denominated. The final discount rates are chosen with
consideration to the following curves for liabilities denominated in Qatari Riyals (which will continue to be monitored,
compared, and assessed for appropriateness):

« The United States (“US”) treasury risk-free curves (since the Qatari Riyal is currently pegged to the US Dollar).
« The Qatar Central Bank’s Money Lending Rate for Qatari Riyal.

Given the relatively liquid nature of the majority of the Group’s contracts, the Group does not incorporate an illiquidity
premium in the discount rates determined using the bottom-up approach. Per the decision to use a bottom-up approach,
no adjustment for the removal of credit risk is required in the derivation of the Group’s discount rates.

Contract boundary
The Group uses the concept of contract boundary to determine what cash flows should be considered in the measurement
of groups of insurance contracts.

Cash flows are within the boundary of an insurance contract if they arise from the rights and obligations that exist during
the period in which the policyholder is obligated to pay premiums or the Group has a substantive obligation to provide the
policyholder with insurance contract services. A substantive obligation ends when:

a) the Group has the practical ability to reprice the risks of the particular policyholder or change the level of benefits
so that the price fully reflects those risks; or
b) both of the following criteria are satisfied:
(i) the Group has the practical ability to reprice the contract or a portfolio of contracts so that the price fully
reflects the reassessed risk of that portfolio; and
(i1) the pricing of premiums up to the date when risks are reassessed does not reflect the risks related to periods
beyond the reassessment date.
Cash flows outside the insurance contracts boundary relate to future insurance contracts and are recognised when those
contracts meet the recognition criteria.

For groups of reinsurance contracts held, cash flows are within the contract boundary if they arise from substantive rights
and obligations of the Group that exist during the reporting period in which the Group is compelled to pay amounts to the
reinsurer or in which the Group has a substantive right to receive insurance contract services from the reinsurer.

Cash flows that are not directly attributable to a portfolio of insurance contracts are recognised in other operating expenses
as incurred.

Insurance acquisition costs and directly attributable expenses

Insurance acquisition cash flows are the costs that are directly associated with selling, underwriting and starting a group
of insurance contracts (issued or expected to be issued) and that are directly attributable to a portfolio of insurance
contracts.

Directly attributable expenses are the costs that can be fully or partially attributed to the fulfillment of the companys of
insurance contracts. The Group allocates the attributable costs based on a number of drivers. Both acquisition and
attributable costs fall under the insurance service expense. While the non-attributable costs are reported under other
operating expenses. The Group amortises the insurance accquistion costs over the contract period.

Insurance revenue

The insurance revenue for the period is the amount of expected premium receipts allocated to the period. The Group
allocates the expected premium receipts to each period of insurance contract services on the basis of the passage of time.
The impact of seasonality is not considered material in relation to recording the insurance revenue.

Insurance service expenses
Insurance service expenses include the following:

a. incurred claims for the period.

b. other incurred directly attributable expenses.

c. insurance acquisition cash flows amortization.

d. changes that relate to past service — changes in the FCF relating to the LIC.

e. changes that relate to future service — changes in the FCF that result in onerous contract losses or reversals of those
losses.

Presentation of reinsurance contracts held
The Group presents financial performance of groups of reinsurance contracts held on a net basis in net income
(expenses) from reinsurance contracts held, comprising the following amounts:

a. reinsurance expenses;

b. incurred claims recovery;

c. other incurred directly attributable insurance service expenses;

d. effect of changes in risk of reinsurer non-performance;

e. changes relating to past service (i.e. adjustments to incurred claims).

Reinsurance expenses are recognised similarly to insurance revenue. The amount of reinsurance expenses recognised in
the reporting period depicts the transfer of received insurance contract services at an amount that reflects the portion of
ceding premiums that the Group expects to pay in exchange for those services. For groups of reinsurance contracts held
measured under the PAA, the Group recognises reinsurance expenses based on the passage of time over the coverage period
of a group of contracts.

Insurance finance income or expenses
Insurance finance income or expenses comprise the change in the carrying amount of the companys of insurance contracts
respectively arising from:

a. the effect of the time value of money and changes in the time value of money; and
b. the effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk.

Onerous contract

The Group assumes that no contracts are onerous at initial recognition, unless facts and circumstances indicate otherwise.
If facts and circumstances indicate that some contracts are onerous, an additional assessment is performed to distinguish
onerous contracts from non-onerous ones.

If facts and circumstances indicate that a group of insurance contracts measured under the PAA is onerous on initial
recognition or becomes onerous subsequently, the Group increases the carrying amount of the LRC to the amounts of the
discounted FCF determined under the General Measurement Model (“GMM?”), with the amount of such an increase
recognised in insurance service expenses, and a loss component is established for the amount of the loss recognised.
Subsequently, the loss component is remeasured at each reporting date as the difference between the amounts of the FCF
determined under the GMM relating to the future service and the carrying amount of the LRC without the loss component.
When a loss is recognised on initial recognition of an onerous group of underlying insurance contracts or on addition of
onerous underlying insurance contracts to that group, the carrying amount of the asset for remaining coverage for
reinsurance contracts held measured under the PAA is increased by the amount of income recognised in profit or loss and
a loss-recovery component is established or adjusted for the amount of income recognised.

The referred income is calculated by multiplying the loss recognised on underlying insurance contracts by the percentage
of claims on underlying insurance contracts that the Group expects to recover from the reinsurance contract held that are
entered into before or at the same time as the loss is recognised on the underlying insurance contracts. When underlying
insurance contracts are included in the same group with insurance contracts issued that are not reinsured, the Group
applies a systematic and rational method of allocation to determine the portion of losses that relates to underlying
insurance contracts.

The Group does not have any reinsurance contracts held measured under the PAA with underlying contracts measured
under the GMM.

Risk adjustment for non-financial risk

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is applied to the present value of the estimated future cash flows, and it reflects
the compensation that the Group requires for bearing the uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows from
non-financial risk as the Group fulfils insurance contracts. The Group has chosen the confidence level between 55th
percentile to 75th percentile of the distribution of the claim reserves, considering this level is adequate to cover sources of
uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows. Various methods are used to determine the risk adjustment
including Mack Model, Cost of Capital (CoC) approach and the factors derived from relevant regulatory requirements.

EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO IFRS 17 AND OTHER ADJUSTMENTS

As stated in Note 2, this is the Group’s first consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 17.

The accounting policies set out in Note 4 have been applied in preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 and in the preparation of an opening IFRS 17 consolidated statement of
financial position at 1 January 2022 (the Group’s date of transition) and 31 December 2022.

In preparing its opening IFRS 17 consolidated statement of financial position, the Group has adjusted amounts reported
previously in financial statements under IFRS 4. An explanation of how the transition from IFRS 4 to IFRS 17 has affected
the Group’s financial position, for the respective periods, is set out in the following tables and the notes that accompany
the tables.

Gulf International Services Q.P.S.C.

R iliation of lidated of fii ialp as at 1 January 2022.
IFRS 17
Pre -adoption of Non IFRS 17 Post adoption of
IFRS 17 j (Note 37) IFRS 17
ASSETS
Property and equipment 5,591,281 - - - 5,591,281
Goodwill 303,559 - - - 303,559
Right-of-use assets 36,292 29,372 - - 65,664
Contract assets 9,464 - - - 9,464
Equity-accounted investees 12,078 - - - 12,078
Financial asset at FVTOCI 418,658 - - - 418,658
Inventories 284,088 - - - 284,088
Contract assets 6,514 (6,514) - - -
Due from related parties 686,354 (677,515) (8,839) - -
Financial asset at FVTPL 420,689 - - - 420,689
Trade and other receivables 694,994 581,170 (267,366) - 1,008,798
Other current assets - 102,859 - - 102,859
Reinsurance contract assets 757,382 - 37,550 (117,031) 677,901
Short-term investments 348,632 - - - 348,632
Other bank balances - 48,619 - - 48,619
Cash and bank balances 349,407 (48,619) - - 300,788
TOTAL ASSETS 9,919,392 29,372 (238,655) (117,031) 9,593,078
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 1,858,409 - - - 1,858,409
Legal reserve 377,308 - - - 377,308
General reserve 74,516 - - - 74516
Translation reserve (55,836) 1,117 - - (54,719)
Fair value reserve 3,786 - - - 3,786
Retained earnings 998,204 17,459 - 61,551 1,077,214
Non-controlling interests (198) - - - (198)
Total Equity 3,256,189 18,576 - 61,551 3,336,316
LIABILITIES
Loans and borrowings 4,325,409 41,452 - - 4,366,861
Contract liabilities 5,267 - - - 5,267
Deferred tax liabilities - 10,796 10,796
Provision for decommissioning costs 45,669 - - - 45,669
Provision for employees’ end of service 101,259 - - - 101,259
Lease liabilities 44,815 - - - 44,815
Dividends payable 50,429 - - - 50,429
Trade and other payables 831,273 (6,629) (221,696) - 602,948
Due to related parties 44,507 (34,823) (9,684) - -
Insurance contract liabilities 1,214,575 - (7,275) (178,582) 1,028,718
Total Liabilities 6,663,203 10,796 (238,655) (178,582) 6,256,762
Reconciliation of lidated of fi ial position as at 31 D ber 2022.
IFRS 17
Pre -adoption of Non IFRS 17 P Post adoption of IFRS
IFRS 1’ j (Note 37) 17
ASSETS
Property and equipment 5,560,956 - - - 5,560,956
Goodwill 303,559 - - - 303,559
Right-of-use assets 27,731 21,840 - - 49,571
Contract assets 13,104 - - - 13,104
Equity-accounted investees 28,088 - - - 28,088
Financial asset at FVTOCI 306,592 - - - 306,592
Inventories 393,170 - - - 393,170
Due from related parties 759,940 (671,219) (88,721) - -
Financial asset at FVTPL 438,185 - - - 438,185
Trade and other receivables 799,656 550,386 (320,869) - 1,029,173
Other current assets - 120,833 - - 120,833
Reinsurance contract assets 1,091,277 - (244,232) (178,599) 668,446
Short-term investments 746,126 - - - 746,126
Other bank balances - 48,619 - - 48,619
Cash and bank balances 396,447 (48,619) - - 347,828
TOTAL ASSETS 10,864,831 21,840 (653,822) (178,599) 10,054,250
EOUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 1,858,409 - - - 1,858,409
Legal reserve 384,339 - - - 384,339
General reserve 74,516 - - - 74,516
Translation reserve (71,371) 45410 - - (25,961)
Fair value reserve (27,646) - - - (27,646)
Retained earnings 1,350,550 (43,199) - 57,893 1,365,244
Non-controlling interests (312) - - - (312)
Total Equitv 3,568,485 2,211 - 57,893 3,628,589
LIABILITIES
Loans and borrowings 4,289,232 78,823 - - 4,368,055
Contract liabilities 17,320 - - - 17,320
Provision for decommissioning costs 45,899 - - - 45899
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 112,028 - - - 112,028
Lease liabilities 41,371 - - - 41,371
Deferred tax liabilities - 19,629 - - 19,629
Dividends payable 48,619 - - - 48,619
Trade and other payables 1,046,056 (55,750) (297,271) - 693,035
Due to related parties 27,812 (23,073) (4,739) - -
Insurance contract liabilities 1,668,009 - (351,812) (236,492) 1,079,705
Total Liabilities 7,296,346 19,629 (653,822) (236,492) 6,425,661

Reconciliation of consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the period ended 31 December 2022

IFRS 17
Previously Relating to Non IFRS 17 lassi i Post adoption of
reported Discontinued adjustments IFRS 17 and
operations (Note 37) other adjustments
Revenue 3,665,539 (616,420) - (903,331) - 2,145,788
Cost of sales (2,992,875) 588,272 - 769,751 - (1,634,852)
Gross profit from non-insurance operations 672,664 (28,148) - (133,580) - 510,936
Insurance revenue - - - 888,014 (230) 887,784
Insurance service expense - - - (675,977) 15,288 (660,689)
Net expense from rei contracts held - - - (113,728) (7:556) (121,284)
Insurance service result - - - 98,309 7,502 105,811
Gross profit and net insurance service results 672,664 (28,148) - (35,271) 7,502 616,747
Finance (expense)/income from insurance contracts
issued - - - - 7,338 7,338
Finance income/(expense) from reinsurance contracts
held - - - - (18,500) (18,500)
Net insurance finance income / (expense) - - - - (11,162) (11,162)
Other income 41,391 (866) (13,122) - - 27,403
Other gains/(losses) — net (61,647) 35,395 - - (26,252)
General and administrative expenses (218,520) 20,648 - 31,759 - (166,113)
Net gains on investments in debt securities measured
at FVOCI reclassified to profit or loss on disposal - 3,529 - - 3,529
Net fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets at FVTPL - - (25,897) - - (25,897)
Net monetary gain arising from hyperinflation (11,411) - 32,171 - - 20,760
Net impairment loss / reversal on financial assets (776) 521 95 3,513 - 3,353
Operating profit 421,701 (7,845) 32,171 1 (3,660) 442,368
IFRS 17
Previously Relating to Non IFRS 17 Reclassification Remeasurement Post adoption of
reported Discontinued adjustment IFRS 17 and
i (Note 37) other adj:
Finance income 38,387 (2,570) - - - 35,817
Finance costs (181,926) 1,550 - - - (180,376)
Finance costs — Net (143,539) (1,020) - - - (144,559)
Share of net profits of equity accounted investees 17,577 - - - - 17,577
Profit before income tax 295,739 (8,865) 32,171 - (3,660) 315,386
Income tax expense (5,688) (8,226) - - (13,914)
Profit for the year from continuing operation 290,051 (17,091) 32,171 - (3,660) 301,472
(Loss) / Profit from discontinued operation
(attributable to the shareholders of the Company) - 8,258 (7,532) - - 726
Profit for the year 290,051 (8,833) 24,639 - (3,660) 302,198
Profit for the year attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company 290,165 (8,833) 24,639 - (3,660) 302,312
Non-controlling interests (14) - - - - (114)
290,051 (8,833) 24,639 - (3,660) 302,198
Other comprehensive income
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Changes in the fair value of debt instruments at fair B B
value through other comprehensive income (31,432) - 3,529 (27,903)
Net instruments at FVOCI reclassified to profit or loss - - (3,529) - - (3,529)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations (15,535) - 44,294 - - 28,759
Other comprehensive loss for the year (46,967) . 44,294 = - (2,673)
Total comprehensive income for the year 243,084 (8,833) 68,933 - (3,660) 299,525
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the
period attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company 243,198 (8,833) 68,933 - (3,660) 299,639
Non-controlling interests (14) - - - (114)
243,084 (8,833) 68,933 - (3,660) 299,525
*Other adjustments represent non IFRS 17 related ised by Refer to Note 37 for more details
R impact on the lidated statement of financial position on adoption of IFRS 17

Impact on equity:

Drivers of changes in equity

Tmpact on equity on

Impact on equity on transition to ion to
IFRS 17 on 31 December 2022

IFRS 17 on 1 January 2022
Changes in of insurance contract liabilities 178,583 236,492
Changes in measurement of reinsurance contract assets (117,031) (178,599)
Total Impact 61,552 57,893

Impact on insurance contract liabilities:

Impact on liabilities on transition | Impact on liabilities on transition

Drivers of changes to IFRS 17 on to IFRS 17 on

1January 2022 31 2022
Risk adj 176,986 218,701
Loss component on onerous contracts 364 15,497
Additional deferral of identified acquisition costs 1,233 2,205
Total Impact 178,583 236,493

Impact on reinsurance contract assets:

Tmpact on assets on transition to | 1mPact on assets on transition to

Drivers of changes IFRS 17 on 1 January 2022 IFRS 17 on 31 December 2022
Reinsurance risk adjustment 114,791 175,843
Additional deferral of identified income 2,240 2,755
Total Impact 117,031 178,598

Overall increase in net equity, is principally, on account of release of margins for prudency which were held under IFRS 4 within outstanding claims and IBNR reserves. Under IFRS
17, the best estimates reserves are held for IBNR therefore the additional margins held under IFRS 4 have been released resulting in the above impact on risk adjustment.

Insurance acquisition cashflows under IFRS 17 included items that were previously classified as other expenses. They were amortised under IFRS 17, which resulted in an increase in
deferred insurance acquisition cashflows.

3.3 NEW, AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRE'

TONS NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Certain amendments to accounting standards have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2023 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the group. These
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements.

4.1 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred to the Group. The
consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired.
Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue of debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such
amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent
consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured and
settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, other contingent consideration is remeasured at fair value at each
reporting date and subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group 'controls’ an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on
which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

Non-controlling interests ('NCI')

NCI are measured initially at their proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition.

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.
Associates

Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control or joint control. This is generally
the case where the group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

Under the equlty method of accounting, the investments are initially recognlsed at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the group’s share of the post- acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the group’s share of
movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.
IAS28(38),(39) Where the group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the
entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity. IAS28(28),(30) Unrealised gains on transactions
between the group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity-accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Loss of control

‘When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related
NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any interést retained in the
former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired dl]d the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling Intorosts in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

4.2 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are recognized at cost of acquisition and measured thereafter at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset. Purchased software that is integral to
the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment. If significant parts of an item of property
and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property
and equipment. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only if it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group

Depreciation

The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:
Useful life

Buildings 4 -20 years
Aircraft 10-20years
Plant and machinery 2 - 7 years
Rigs 15 - 30 years

Other property and equipment:
Ground and radio equipment and tools
Motor vehicles

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Computers

4 - 6 years
4 - 5 years
3 -7 years

3 years

Depreciation is calculated from when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciation is based on the estimated
useful lives of the applicable assets on a straight-line basis, except capitalised maintenance expenditures, which are
depreciated depending on the nature:
1) Spares such as engines, gearboxes are depreciated over 4 years as that's the established intervals for such
maintenance (normal aviation practice is to have an inspection every 4 years) to ensure air worthiness.
2) Other spares which are consumed based on the flying hours and required to be replaced as per the air safety
manual. Hence it is appropriate to depreciate these over the usage in terms of flying hours.

Capitalised maintenance expenditures represent major overhaul and inspections costs to aircraft, engines and gearboxes.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed at each reporting date, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Derecognition

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use. Profit and loss on disposals of items of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from
their disposals with their respective carrying amounts, and are recognised net within consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Capital work-in-progres:

Capital work-in-progress is carried at cost less impairment, if any. capital work-in-progress is not depreciated. once assets
within the capital work-in-progress category are completed, they are reclassified to the relevant category and depreciated
accordingly once they are put into use. Prepayments for property and equipment is included in capital work in progress.

4.3 INVENTORIES

Inventories are measured-at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties, transportation handling and other direct costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the following methods:

- Drilling related inventories are calculated using weighted average method;
- Aviation related inventories are calculated using specific identification method; and
- Catering related inventories are calculated using First-in-First Out (FIFO) method.

4.4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
@ Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities

are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item no PL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

(b) Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
ose to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or loss), and
- those to be measured at amortised cost. The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).
The group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(i1) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being the date on which the group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash

flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the group classifies its debt

instr uments:
Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or
loss.

- FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCIL. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/(losses), and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

- FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within
other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the group’s right to receive payments is established.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are measured either at FVTPL or at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a
designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised in the consolidated statement profit or loss incorporates
any interest paid on the financial liability.

However, for financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The remaining
amount of change in the fair value of liability is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income are not subsequently reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss; instead, they are transferred to
retained earnings upon derecognition of the financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

4.5 IMPAIRMENT
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase

in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, see Note 5 for further details.

4.6 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTs (DAC)

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of impairment arises.
When the recoverable amount is less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. DAC are
included as a part of the liability adequacy test for each reporting period.

DAC are derecognised when the related contracts are either settled or disposed off.
4.7 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Insurance contract liabilities include the provision for outstanding claims, provision for claims incurred but not reported
and the provision for unearned premium. Insurance contact liabilities are recognized when contracts are entered into and
premiums are charged. The provision for outstanding claims is recognized for claims reported but not settled and accounts
for the liability for unpaid loss and loss adjustment expense amounts based on the management's and loss adjusters’ best
estimate.

The provision for claims incurred but not reported is calculated based on empirical data, historical trends and patterns and
appropriate assumption with the application of widely acceptable actuarial techniques.

The provision for unearned premium represents the portion of premium which relates to risks that have not expired as the

reporting date. The provision for unearned premium is calculated based on the insurance service pattern provided by the
insurance contract and is recognized as income over the term of the contract.

The Group reviews the adequacy of the provision for unearned premium to cover costs associated with liability arising from
unexpired risk at each reporting date. Where the provision is considered inadequate to cover future contractual obligations
for unexpired risks, a provision for premium deficiency is established and recognized.

4.8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks, cash in hand and short-term deposits. Short-term deposits held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes, capable of being readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and with an insignificant risk of changes in value are classified as cash and bank
balances.

4.9 SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares and the special share issued by the Group are classified as equity. The special share grants rights to
QatarEnergy as described in its Article of Association.

4.10 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised based on the amount of transaction price. Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring control over promised goods or services to a customer,
excluding the amounts collected on behalf of third parties. For further details refer to the below table.

Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies

The following table provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in
contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policies.

Nature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligations, significant

Type of services payment terms

Drilling and related services Customers generally contract for an agreement to provide integrated services to operate a

rig and drill a well. The Group is seen by the operators as the overseer of all services.

Consideration for activities that are not distinct within the scope of contracts, such as
mobilization, and demobilization do not align with a distinct time increment within the
contract term are allocated across the single performance obligation and are recognised
over the expected recognition period in proportion to the passage of each hour available to
drill.

Drilling services are consumed as the services are performed and generally enhance a well
site which the customer controls. Work performed on a well site does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the contractor since the well/asset being worked on is owned by
the customer. Therefore, the Group's measure of progress for a drilling contract is hours
available to drill over the contracted duration. This unit of measure is representative of an
output method as described in IFRS 15.

Customers are invoiced on a monthly basis and consideration is payable when invoiced.

Management fees The Group entered into an agreement to provide management services to one of its Joint
Venture entities. Revenue from management fee is recognized over time as the customer

benefits from the services as they are provided.

Revenue is recognised over time as the services are provided using the input method.
Customers are invoiced on a monthly basis and consideration is payable when invoiced.

Aviation revenue -
Helicopter transportation
services, operation services
(MRO) and training
services.

The revenue is derived from helicopter transportation services, operations services and
training services.

Transportation services

The revenue from hehcopter transportation services includes alr—charter, tourist flights,
aerial photo ﬂ)ghts, air ambulance and related services. Revenue is recognised as the
transportation services have been provided.

Customers are invoiced on a monthly basis and consideration is payable when invoiced.

Operation services (MRO)
The revenue from operation services includes servicing and maintenance of charters and
helicopters of the customers. Revenue is recognised as the services have been provided.

Customers are invoiced on a monthly basis and consideration is payable when invoiced.

Training services
The revenue from training services includes flight training provided to the customers.
Revenue is recognised as the services have been provided.

Customers are invoiced on a monthly basis and consideration is payable when invoiced.

Revenue is recognised over time as the services are provided. For fixed-price contracts,
revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of the reporting period
as a proportion of the total services to be provided, because the customer receives and uses
the benefits simultaneously. This is determined based on the flying hours spent relative to
the total hours agreed in the contract.

Supply of spare parts The Group provides spare parts of helicopters to its customers. The revenue is recognised
point in time when control is transferred, being when the spare parts are delivered to the

customer.

The revenue is recognised point in time when control is transferred, being when the
spare part are delivered to the customer.

Premiums and reinsurance premiums are taken into income over the terms of the policies to which they relate. Gross
insurance and reinsurance written premiums comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole period of cover
provided by contracts entered into during the accounting period. They are recognised on the date on which the policy
commences.

Unearned premiums represent the portion of net premiums written relating to the unexpired period of coverage calculated
at actual number of days method (daily pro-rata basis). The change in the provision for unearned premium is taken to the
statement of income in order that revenue is recognised over the period of risk.

4.11 SEGMENT REPORTING

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's other components.
An operating segment's results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available (Note 33).

Segment results that are reported to the Board of Directors include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly the parent company assets and related
general and administrative expenses and goodwill recognized on business combination.

4.12 SOCIAL FUND CONTRIBUTION

The Group makes contributions equivalents to 2.5% of the adjusted consolidated net profit for the year into a state social
fund for the support of sports, cultural, social and charitable activities. This is presented in the statement of changes of
equity as an appropriation of profit in accordance with Law No. 13 of 2008.

4.13 DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTIONS

Dividend distributions are at the discretion of the Group. A dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders is accounted
for as a deduction from retained earnings. A declared dividend is recognised as a liability in the period in which it is
approved by the shareholders.

4.14 INCOME TAX

International Tax Reform—Pillar Two Model Rules — Amendments to IAS 12

The International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules (Amendments to IAS 12) provide a temporary mandatory exception
from deferred tax accounting which is effective immediately and require new disclosures about the Pillar Two exposure.
However, since in Qatar, where the Company and its parent QatarEnergy operates, have not enacted or substantively
enacted the tax legislation related to the top-up tax as at the reporting date, there is no impact on the Group’s financial
statements as at and for the year ended 31 December, 2023. Management is closely monitoring developments related to
the implementation of the international tax reforms introducing a global minimum top-up tax. The adoption of the new
accounting standards and amendments did not have a significant impact on the Company’s separate financial statements
for this year.

Current tax

The Company’s profits are exempt from income tax in accordance with the provisions of Qatar’s Income Tax Law No. 24.
of 2018. Current tax in these financial statements comprises the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years related to the subsidiaries of the Group as per the tax
laws and relevant subsequent executive regulations applicable in Qatar as at the reporting date. Refer to Note 30 for further
details related to settlement mechanism of the above tax liabilities.

4.15 HYPERINFLATION

The Group has operations in Turkey through its indirect subsidiary namely Redstar Havacilik Hizmetleri AS. The
functional currency of the subsidiary in Turkey is Turkish Lira. From 1 April 2022, the Turkish economy has been
considered hyperinflationary based on the characteristics established by International Accounting Standard 29, 'Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies' ('IAS 29"). This designation is determined following an assessment of a series
of qualitative and quantitative circumstances, including the presence of a cumulative inflation rate of more than 100% over
the previous three years. IAS 29 requires that the financial statements of the subsidiary are stated in terms of the measuring
unit current at the balance sheet date which requires restatement of the non-monetary assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary to reflect the changes in the general purchasing power of the Turkish Lira.

The basic principles applied in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, are summarized in the following
paragraphs

Adjustment for prior years

The comparative amounts in consolidated financial statements presented in a stable currency are not adjusted for
subsequent changes in the price level or exchange rates. Opening equity in the consolidated financial statement reported
in the stable currency will be affected by:

e  the effect of restating non-monetary items from the date they were first recognised; and

- the effect of translating those balances to the closing rate
This results in a difference between the closing equity of the previous year in the consolidated financial statements and the
opening equity of the current year. The combined effect of restating in accordance with IAS 29 and translation according
to IAS 21 is presented as a net change in other comprehensive income (OCI)

Adjustment for current year

Monetary assets and liabilities, which are carried at amounts current at the date of consolidated statement of financial
position, are not restated because they are already expressed in terms of the monetary unit current at the date of
consolidated statement of financial position. Non-monetary assets and liabilities, which are not carried at amounts current
at the date of consolidated statement of financial position, and components of owners' equity are restated by applying the
relevant conversion factors. Net monetary gain arising from hyperinflation is recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. All items in the statement of profit or loss are restated by applying the
conversion factors from the date on which the transaction originated except for those amounts deriving from non-monetary
items, which are calculated based on the restated values of the related items.

The effect of application indices on the Group's net monetary position is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as monetary gain or loss.

All items in the consolidated statement of cash flows are expressed in a measuring unit current at the date of consolidated
statement of financial position; they are therefore restated by applying the relevant conversion factors from the date on
which the transaction originated.

4.16 LEASES

The leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable, if any; and
- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

- uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent third party financing, an
. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
- any initial direct costs, and

- restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less from the date of contract.



. olest i i3 GUIF International Services Q.P.S.C.

Gulf International Services osc

5 (Continued)

S OTHERWIE

> FINANCIAL
QATARI RIVALS

FATEMEN]
‘000 UNLE:

ATED)

5. FINANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
5.1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

@ Underwriting risk;
(b) Credit risk;

© Liquidity risk; and
(@ Market risk.

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated
financial statements.

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management
framework. The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group and
to monitor risks.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through its training
and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which
all employees understand their roles and obligations.

(a) Underwriting risk

Underwriting risk comprises insurance risk, policyholder persistency risk and expense risk. The Group manages its
underwriting risk based on the underwriting policy as approved by the Executive Risk Committee. The Risk Management
Committee monitors the adequate application of the policy, and it reviews the trends in pricing, loss ratios and
underwriting risks. The Committee is also involved in decisions made by the Executive Risk Committee on underwriting,
pricing and market strategy.

Underwriting risk management — Property and Casualty

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors. The most significant are the level of awards for
morbidity risk (for example, health recovery and incapacity for work) and the number of cases coming to court, especially
for bodily injuries. This can be summarised as legislation risk. The amount of awards and the time for court settlement are
set by the legislation. The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts.

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting strategy (two of the techniques that are pivotal for automobile
insurance are product pricing and portfolio segmentation), adequate reinsurance arrangements and proactive claims
handling. The objective of the underwriting strategy is to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of
type and amount of risk. The variability of risks is improved by the careful selection and implementation of underwriting
strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits.

The Group has limited its exposure by imposing maximum claim amounts on certain contracts, as well as using reinsurance
arrangements in order to limit its exposure to aggregate amount of claims (for example, third party liability claims). The
effect of such reinsurance arrangements is that the Group should not suffer total insurance losses above a certain level.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria. For example, the Group has the right not to
renew individual policies, to re-price the risk on renewal, to impose deductibles, and to reject the payment of a fraudulent
claim. Claims payment limits are always included to cap the amount payable on occurrence of the insured event.

Insurance contracts also entitle the Group to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs (for example,
subrogation).

The Group has a specialised claims unit dealing with the mitigation of risks surrounding known claims. This unit
investigates and adjusts all material or suspicious claims. The claims are reviewed individually at least annually and
adjusted to reflect the latest information on the underlying facts, current law, contractual terms and conditions, and other
factors. The Group actively manages and pursues early settlements of claims, to reduce its exposure to unpredictable
developments.

Expense risk

Exposure to interest rate risk

Bank deposits are agreed at fixed rates, and hence does not exposes the Group to interest rate risk. Interest bearing loans
and borrowings are issued at variable rates, which exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group's
management monitors the interest rate fluctuations on a continuous basis and acts accordingly.

b) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market.

The Group's equity price risk exposure relates to financial assets and financial liabilities whose values will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market prices, principally investment in equity securities.

The Group's price risk policy requires it to manage such risks by setting and monitoring objectives and constraints on
investments, diversification plans, limits on investments in each sector. The Group has no significant concentration of
price risk.

The Group limits equity price risk by maintaining a diversified portfolio and by continuous monitoring of its investments.
The majority of the Groups’s equity investments comprise securities quoted on the Qatar Exchange.

A 10% change in the prices of equities, with all other variables held constant, would impact equity and consolidated
statement of profit or loss by QR 12.97 million (2022: QR 11.68 million).

© Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the group entity's functional currency.

The Group is exposed to transactional foreign currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies
in which sales, purchases, receivables and borrowings are denominated and the respective functional currencies of Group
companies. The functional currencies of Group companies are primarily Qatari Riyal and Turkish Lira, the currencies in
which these transactions are primarily denominated are US Dollar and Euro.

The transactions of the Group in the US Dollar bear no foreign currency risk as the US Dollar is pegged with the Qatari
Riyal. With respect to Euro, management monitors the exchange rate fluctuations on a continuous basis and makes its
effort to limit the transaction in these currencies without causing interruption to its operations.

The group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period, expressed in Qatari Riyals, was as follows:
2022

Net Exposure (Liability) 2023

Euro 108,125 16,145

Increase/ decrease
in Euro to the QR

Effect on profit
before tax

2023 +/-3% 444,741
2022 +/-3% 62,367
5.3 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong capital base in order to
support its business and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital using a ratio of 'met debt' to 'equity’. The Group's capital management policy remained
unchanged since the previous year.

202 2022
Expense risk is the risk of unexpected increases in policy maintenance, claim handling and other costs relating to fulfilment 2
of insurance contracts. The risk is managed through budgeting and periodic cost evaluations. Total borrowings (i) 4,406,830 4,368,055
o Lease liability 28,385 41,371
) Credit risk Less: Cash and cash equivalents* (1,248,900) (1,093,954)
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash flows of debt investments carried at amortised cost, at Netdebt 3,186,315 3,315,472
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and deposits with Total equity (ii) 3,836,653 3,628,589
banks and financial institutions, as well as outstanding receivables. Net debt to equity ratio 0.83 0.01
(i) Risk management * Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments.
Credit risk is managed on a group basis. For banks, the group only deals with the reputed banks in the country. If wholesale
customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control ) Total borrowings are defined as short and long-term borrowings (loan and borrowings) as detailed in Note 19.
assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. @i Total equity includes all capital, retained earnings and reserves of the Group that are managed as capital.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers, specific industry sectors 6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
and/or regions. The group’s investments in debt instruments are considered to be low risk investments. The credit ratings
of the investiments are monitored for credit deterioration.
Other Capital
(i) Security Freehold property and work-in-
For some trade receivables the group may obtain security in the form of guarantees, deeds of undertaking or letters of land Rigs _ Machi Aireraft i ress Total
credit which can be called upon if the counterparty is in default under the terms of the agreement.
Cost:
(iii) Impairment of financial assets As at 1 January 2023 90,826 172,764 6,573,810 1,269,415 1,670,155 653,289 173,553 10,603,812
The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on: Additions - 986 1,744 105,042 108,773 52,348 64,407 333,300
- Trade receivables; Transfers = = 34,327 367 = 670 (35,364) =
- Other receivables; . Disposals = = ° = (37:440) (5,002) 391) (42,833)
- Other financial assets at amortised cost Write-offs - - - €O _ D) _ (22,284)
- Debt investments measured at FVOCI; and Effect of hyperinflation ~ . . ~ 68,521 4,060 ~ 72,500
- Contract assets. Effect of movements in exchange rates = (268) - - (76,466) (6,483) @541 (87,758)
Trade recei os . -act assets Disposal of a subsidiary = (53,467) = (62,721) = (52,741) = (168,929)
Trade receivables and contract assets As at 31 December 2023 90,826 120,015 6,600,881 1,301,798 1,733,543 634,171 197,664 10,687,808
The group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets. Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses:
To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk Asat 1 January 2023 - 105,948 2,469,207 948,404 956,491 552800 - 5,042,856
characteristics and the days past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially the Depreciation charge for the year - 3,037 202,624 51,812 49,812 43,953 - 351,238
same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The group has therefore concluded that Impairment loss (Note 6.3) - - - - 7:316 - - 7:316
the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets. Disposals - - - - (35,611) (3,478) - (30,089)
Write-offs o = 797) = (9,508) (10,714) = (21,019)
The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 24 months before 31 December 2023 or Effect of hyperinflation o o o = 14,836 920 - 15,756
1 January 2023 respectively and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical Effect of movements in exchange rates = (244) = - (11,428) (3,794) - (15,466)
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability Disposal of a subsidiary - (47,440) - (57,723) - (54,140) - (159,303)
of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has identified the GDP in which it sells its goods and services to be As at 31 December 2023 - 61,301 2,671,034 942,493 971,908 534,553 = 5,181,289
the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when Net carrying value:
estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue As at 31 December 2023 90826 oSS 035847 359:300) ZOUED 99:618 L GEED
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.
Current 181-365  More than
(mot past 1-90 days 91—180 days  days past 365 days Other Capital
due) past due past due due past due Total .
Freehold property and work-in-
31 December 2023 land ildi Rigs* hineri Aircraft* i progress Total
Gross carrying amount
— trade receivables 703,555 67,021 17,262 75,554 57,023 920,415 Cost:
Gross carrying amount s s As at 1 January 2022 90,826 172,752 6,573,810 1,163,069 1,613,262 632,181 48,731 10,204,631
— contract assets 19,784 = = = = 19,784 ‘Additions N N - 81,158 17,660 26,253 150,016 275,087
Transfers - - - 33,445 (6,534) 357 (27,268) -
Current 181-365  More than Disposals - - - (8,257) 862 (4,433) (687) (12,515)
(mot past 1-90 days 91—180 days  days past 365 days Write-offs - - - - (6,103) (7,110) - (13,213)
due) past due past due due past due Total Effect of hyperinflation - - - - 78,013 8,333 2,443 88,789
31 December 2022 Effect of movements in exchange rates - 12 - - (27,005) (2,292) (582) (29,867)
Gross carrying amount As at 31 December 2022 90,826 172,764 6,573,810 1,269,415 1,670,155 653,289 173,553 10,603,812
— trade receivables 851,276 38,155 10,136 55,994 55,563 1,011,124
Gross carrying amount Accumulated depreciation and
— contract assets 93,979 - - - - 93,979 impai s:
As at1January 2022 - 101,080 2,266,476 893,301 909,160 533,333 - 4,703,350
Trade receivables and contract assets are written off where there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that Depreciation charge for the year - 4,858 202,731 55,959 48,276 35,649 - 347,473
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment Impairment loss (Note 6.3) - - - - 2,202 - - 2,202
plan with the group, and a failure to make contractual payments for a period of greater than 365 days past due. Dispos - - - (856) (6,437) (3,901) - (11,194)
Write-offs - - - - (5,928) (6,874) - (12,802)
Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets are presented as net impairment losses within operating profit. Effect of hyperinflation property - - - - - 2,141 - 2,141
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the same line item. Effect of movements in exchange rates - 10 - - 12,778 (1,102) - 11,686
As at 31 December 2022 - 105,948 2,469,207 948,404 960,051 559,246 - 5,042,856
Debt investments
. . . . L Net carrying value:
All of the Group’s debt investments at amortised cost and FVOCI are considered to have low credit risk , and the loss ‘As at 31 December 2022 90,826 66,816 4,104,603 o101 10,104 04043 173,553 5,560,056
allowance recognised during the period was therefore limited to 12 months’ expected losses. Management consider ‘low

credit risk’ for listed bonds to be an investment grade credit rating with at least one major rating agency. Other instruments
are considered to be low credit risk where they have a low risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.

Other financial assets at amortised cost
Other financial assets at amortised cost include short term investments with local banks.
Debt instruments measured at FVOCI

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) include managed funds and, listed and
unlisted debt securities. The loss allowance for debt investments at FVOCI is recognised in profit or loss and reduces the
fair value loss otherwise recognised in OCI.

© Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Management's approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity reserve (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities and
cash and cash equivalents) on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out at local level in the operating
companies of the Group, in accordance with practice and limits set by the group.

These limits vary by location to take into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In addition, the
group’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the financial liabilities of the Group as at 31 December based on
remaining undiscounted contractual obligations.
Contractual cash flows

More than

Less than 6 months

6 months to 1 year 1 year Total
At 31 December 2023
Loans and borrowings 181,283 181,283 5,600,364 5,971,930
Insurance contract liabilities 351,028 351,028 549,820 1,251,876
Trade payables, accruals and other
payables 636,542 2,163 = 638,705
Dividends payable 47,079 = - 47,079
Lease liabiliti 2,023 3,228 23,134 28,385
Contract liabilities 2,730 = = 2,730
1,220,685 537,702 6,182,318 7,940,705
Contractual cash flows
Less than 6 months More than Total
6 months to 1 year 1 year
At 31 December 2022
Loans and borrowings 1,145,660 590,188 2,639,072 4,374,920
Insurance contract liabilities 240,996 240,996 597,713 1,079,705
Trade payables, accruals and other 727,858 2,163 - 730,021
payables
Dividends payable 48,619 - - 48,619
Lease liabilities 31,938 2,000 7:432 41,370
Contract liabilities 14,590 - 2,730 17,320
2,209,661 835,347 3,246,947 6,291,955

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly
different amounts.

5.2 MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, equity prices and interest rates, will
affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is
to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises when the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group's management monitors the interest rate fluctuations on a continuous basis and acts

accordingly.

The interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

2023 2022
Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets

Short term investments and term deposits 718,793 746,126
Variable rate instruments

Financial liabilities

Loans and borrowings 4,406,830 4,368,055

has further di:

d the property and equipment by class compared to prior year to improve the presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

6.1 Freehold land mainly comprises of a plot of land acquired by Al Koot Insurance and Reinsurance Company
P.J.S.C. for the purpose of setting up an administrative and operations office.

6.2 Depreciation charge for the_continuing operations for the year has been included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as follows:

2023 2022
Cost of sales 346,593 343,643
General and administrative expenses 4,645 3,830
351,238 347,473

6.3 Aircraft (Bell series)

Management has identified that the Bell series within the aviation segment is becoming technologically obsolete
and does not foresee sustainable stream of revenue. On that basis management has impaired the Bell series
within the aviation segment down to its fair value less cost to sell using market prices adjusted for the condition
of the aircraft (Level 3). The carrying exceeded the recoverable amount and therefore management recognized
an additional impairment of QR 7.3 million during the year (2022: QR 2 million). The carrying value of Bell
series after the cumulative impairment amounted to QR 19.2 million as of 31 December 2023

Drilling Rigs

Further as of 31 December 2023 management has carried out an assessment of impairment of its rigs in light of
the external indicators, current economic conditions surrounding the oil prices and market rates of such assets.
The Group considers each of its drilling rigs within the drilling segment as individual CGUs. The recoverable
amount was determined by the Value in Use method which uses the CGUs discounted projected cashflows.

Based on the assessment, recoverable amount of each CGU was found to be more than its carrying value. The
impairment model did not identify any impairment losses.
Management has determined the values assigned to each of the above key assumptions as follows:

Assumption Approach used to determine values Rigs average
rate

Average revenue  Revenue assumptions are contractual when possible, with an average annual
growth rate revenue growth rate over the forecasted period based on management’s

expectation of market development and product performance, based on

anticipated new customers being added to the

e-commerce platform. 4.4%
Pre-tax discount
rate Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) 9.5%

Management has identified that a reasonably possible change in the WACC assumptions for Rigs could cause the carrying
amount to exceed the recoverable amount. Reduction in the growth rate by 0.5% will result in an impairment of QR 116
million. The impairment models were not significantly sensitive to other assumptions.

7. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 16 October 2023, one of the subsidiaries of the Group namely Amwaj Catering Services, which represents the Group’s
catering segment, acquired 100% shares of selected entities of Shagab Abela Catering Services Company and Atyab Fruits
and Vegetables. Simultaneously the Group transferred 35.7% of its ownership in Amwaj Catering Services to Tamween
Capital, and 34.3% to Abela Qatar International (“AQI”). The Group retained the remaining 30% in Amwaj Catering
Services.

The transaction resulted in the deconsolidation of Amwaj Catering Services and recognition of the retained interest as an
equity accounted investment with 30% ownership at fair value. Accordingly, the subsidiary is reported in the current
period as a discontinued operation until the date of deconsolidation. A loss was recognised on the transaction by the
Group of QR 26 million within loss from discontinued operation.

The financial performance and cash flow information presented are for the period from 1 January 2023 to 16 October
2023 (2023 column) and the year ended 31 December 2022.
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. 16 October 31 December 13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
For the period/year ended zo=3 2022
Revenue 351.485 616,420 2023 2022
Expenses (349,.381) (615,087)
Profit before income tax =.10a 1.333 Trade receivables 920,887 1,024,069
Income tax expense =) 6oz Contract assets 6.680 80,875
Profit after income tax of discontinued operation =.0a= 726 ©27,567 1,104,944
Loss on sale of the subsidiary after income tax (26,279) - (57.0=23) (75.771)
Loss) / Profit from discontinued operation (za.=237) 726 Less: Provision Tor impalrment of tracde and other vrecelvables 5729523 75772
C D/ P 870,544 1,029,173
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities 97.589 (1,095) . L . ] . .
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from investing activities 5.502> 21,320 Movement in provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is as follows:
Net cash outflow from financing activities 85.977) 13,781)
Neti sein cash g <d by the subsidiary 6.020 6.453 2023 2022
Balance at 1 January 75,771 73,012
Pu i tion cash ocutflow as at 16 October zo=23 Disposal of subsidiary (z0,208) -
Provision made during the year 1,460 2,750
Cash consideration - 57.023 75.771
Less cash disposed (127,414)
Net outflow of cash investing activities G=z7,414) Provision for impairment loss/ (reversal of impairment) on financial assets is presented in consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and analysed as follows:
Details of the of the subsidiary idated as at 16 Octob zo=3
zo=z23 2022
Consideration - Fair value of retained interest in Amwaj 344.623
_ess carrying amount of net assets d lidated™ (370.90=) Financial investments (Note 11) 237 (3,624)
Loss on disposal (26,279) Trade and other receivables (Note 13) 1,460 2,759
Amwaj's profit for the period until deconsolidation =,04= Short-torm investmonts has (2.1
Loss from di 1 operation za.237) Cash and bank balances (Note 15) - 426
*This includes QR 303 million of goodwill 1,341 (3.353)
The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as at the date of deconsolidation, 16 October 2023, were: Contract assets presented in the idated s ent of fi ial position as follows:
zo=3 zo=3 2022
Property and equipment ©.626 Current 6.680 80,875
Right-of-use assets 35.869 Non-current 13,104 13,104
Total non-current assets a5.a95 10.784 93,970
Inventories 13,768 N N N N
Trade and other receivables 130,170 Contracts assets have reduced during the year mainly due to the disposal of Amwaj.
Cash and bank balan 127,414
Total current asset: 271,352 14. SHORT T
Total asset: 316,847
zo= 2022
Lease liabilities 8,433 2
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 32,025 m i .
Provision for decommissioning costs a6.079 Short term investments 718,793 746,126
Total non-current liabilities 86.537
15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Lease liabilities 26,987
Trade and other payables 135.980 2023 2022
Total current liabilities 162,967
Total liabilities =a9,504 Cash in hand =220 1,001
. . iai : : 5 5 . : s o Cash at bank
In compliance with the provisions of International Accounting Standard (IAS 28) 'Investments in associates and joint pas t banfk : and call deposits s8-8 o
ventures' a notional purchase price allocation (NPPA) was undertaken to account for the transaction. Based on the - Current accounts and call deposits 520,87 206,350
rovisional NPPA performed, customer contracts of QR 11.6 million, and goodwill of QR 204 million were identified as - Fixed and term ) & (2) = 140.813
intangible assets. 530,107 348,254
Less: Provision for impairment of bank balances = (426
The Group applied judgment with the support of an independent valuer in order to determine the fair values of the Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated statement of cash
combining entities and the fair values that formed part of the notional purchase price allocation using dlscounled flows 530,107 347,828
cashfl
8. RIGH" @ These fixed deposits held with banks are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position than for investment or other purposes, capable of being readily convertible to a known amount of cash and with
an insignificant risk of changes in value.
The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:
15.1 OTHER BANK BALANCES
zo=3 2022
Right-of-use assets
2OZ3 2022 Cash at banks - restricted for dividend (Note 23) 47,079 48,619
O 8,61
Buildings 11,966 46,072 27:079 = 2
Land 16,420 3.499
28,386 29.571 16. SHARE CAPITAL
zo=3 2022 zo=3 zo22
Lao . 858.4
Balance at 1 January A 65,664 Issued and paid-up capital 1 oo 1.858,400
Additions for the year 28,38, 15.07: . . . . o . . - . -
ons | i ; 385 15073 The Group has an authorised share capital of QR 2,000 million, divided into 1 special share of nominal value of QR 1 and
Amortisation during the year (13,701) (31,166) 2 3 < Y H
- . B 2 1,099,999,999 ordinary shares of each of nominal value of QR 1. As at the reporting date, the Group had issued and paid
Disposal of subsidiary (35.869) 3 i
= SoE up capital of QR 11,858,409 lhougand (2022: QR 11,858,409 thousand) which consists of 1 special share of nominal value

he Group had disposed of Amwaj during the year which held a right of use assets amounting to QR 36 million as of the
disposal date.

o. LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities

1) Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position
The Group has recorded lease liabilities as below:

zo=3 zoz2z
Balance at 1 January 41,371 44.815
Additions for the year 28,386 15,073

Finance cost for the year zo= 535

Payments made during the year (6,154) (19,052)
Disposal of subsidiary (35,420) -
28,385 41,371
zo=3 2022
Non-current liabilities 23,135 7,432
Current liabilities 5,250 33,939
=) Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income

The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income shows the following amounts relating to leases

of QR 1_and 1,858,408,6890 o ry shares each of nominal value of QR 1 (2022: 1 special share of nominal value of QR
1 and 1,858,408,680 ordinary ShareY Shen ot o minal vhlue of QR 1). The special share is owned by QatarEnergy and may
not be cancelled or redeemed without the consent of the Qatarknergy. The special share grants rights to QatarEnergy as
described in its Article of Association.

Special share may be transferred only to the Government, any Government Corporation or any QatarEnergy affiliate. All
ordinary shares carry equal rights.

17. RESERVES

(a) Legal reserve

The Articles of Association of the Company states that prior to recommending any dividend for distribution to the
Shareholders, the Board shall ensure proper reserves are established in respect of voluntary and statutory reserves
considered by the Board to be necessary or appropriate.

(b) General reserve

The general reserve is maintained in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company to meet
any unforeseen future events. The balance under this reserve is not available for distribution, except in the circumstances
specified in the Articles of Association

@ Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign currenecy differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations.

()  Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of quoted debt securities, managed funds

ZO23 2022 and unquoted investments.
Interest expense (included in finance cost) zo= 535
Amortisation of right of use assets 13,701 31,166 18. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
- zo=23 2022
10. EQUITY-ACCOUNTED INVESTEES
% of Advances to employees 38,035 46,122
Name of entity ownership zo=3 2022 Advances to suppliers 111,581 74,711
zo=3 zo==2 119,616 120,833
Amwaj Catering 30% 100% 349,510 -
Gulfdrill L.L.C. 50% 50% 31,854 12,033
Immaterial joint ventures 49% 49% 8,679 15,155 19. LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Total equity accounted investees 390,052 8,088
zo=23 2022
Loans related to drilling segment (i) 4,380,446 4,358,044
Loans related to aviation segment (i) 26,384 10,011
4,406,830 4,368,055
The movements of loans and borrowings were as follows:
The movement in the material equity accounted investees is as follows:
zo=23 2022
Amwaj Catering Gulfdrill L.L.C Balance at 1 January 4,368,055 4,366,861
- Borrowings obtained during the year 20,440 106,288
Beginning of the year - 12,033 Interest during the year 205,060 174,999
Additions 344,623 - Repaid during the year (193,374) (285,259)
Profit for the period/year 3,062 18,080 Movement in unamortized finance costs 649 5.1
Other adjustments o34 841 Balance at 31 December 3.406.8 3.36 ()5:,
Dividends paid - -
349,519 31,854 Presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:
a Summarised financial information for equity accounted investees zo=3 2022
The tables below provide summarised financial information for equity accounted investees and the Group’s share of those I iabiliti 6.6
amounts. They have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method, including ow ““t‘;,e‘]‘;.ll.‘?b‘l‘“es e 2,633,625
fair value adjustments and modifications for differences in accounting policy. urrent liabilities > 1,734,430
4,406,830 4,368,055

s ised t of financial position Amwaj Catering Gulfdrill L.L.C.

B * tal positi zo=3 2022 zo=3 2022 () These borrowings are related to the Group’s subsidiary, Gulf Drilling International (Qatari Private Shareholding
Company) (*“GDI”). GDI has entered into various borrowing arrangements with different banks. The facilities bear

Current assets - interest rate of 3.3% and QCB rate +0.6%. Most of these loans are to be repaid in quarterly instalments. The loans

Cash and cash equivalents 175,773 - 1,369 26,516 obtained by GDI are unsecured.

Other ent @ O, - 05,660 375,40. N N P PR N PR

e e e Litsoe e 375,404 In March 2023, the Group renegotiated its existing loan facilities and obtained = new loan facilities of QR 4,132

‘otal current assets 566,127 — 507.029 401,920 L o . g > cnesotals wS oxs actie < obta Ny e by “ =

N e, oo - TFee ot oon million from local banks. The loans will be repaid in 18 unequal annual instalments commencing from 2026 and a

= 2 2708 balloon payment of 35% upon maturity in 2048.

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities (excluding - The refinancing did not result in any extinguishment gain/loss. However, transaction cost of QR 21 million relating

trade payables) 126,765 - - 147.477 to the new facility was recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the year.

Other current liabilitie: 340.837 - 204.975 396.517

Total current liabilities 467.60= - 294.975 543.904 (ii) The borrowings are related to the Group’s subsidiary, Gulf Helicopters Company (Qatari Private Shalehold)ng

Company) ("GHC™). GHC had entered into a borrowing facility to financ e purchase of helicopters e facility

Non-current liabilities - had an Intercst rate of 6 months LIBOR DIUS 1.55% - 5.75% (505a: LIBOR plus 1.55% - 2.75%). Subsequent to 30

Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) 18,802 - 368,02 74,853 June 2023, the master agreement was amended to transition the reference rate from LIBOR to SOFR (Secured

Other non-current liabilitics e _ et Ho.200 overnight financing rate) which is administered by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York. The loan is to be repaid

e iabilits - - - in bi-annual instalments, it is unsecured and does not have any financial covenants with an interest rate of SOFR +

Total non-current liabilitie: 133.180 15.326 124,053

ot . s = 202 2.5% rate. The agreements have no covenants attached and also no change to the loan balance. The impact of change

ct assets EGL,S =1 - 1,739 25.57 in benchmark to the interest expense is not material.

Group’s share in 2 30% - 50% 50% The Group's loans are denominated in US Dollars.

Group’s share as5.5a6 - 30.860 12,780

Other adjustments oER - o8s 144 20. PROVISION FOR DECOMMISSIONING COST

Goodwill (Note 7) 294,352 - - -

Carrying amount 349.510 - 31.854 12,933 2023 bom
Summarised statement of comprehensive Amwaj Catering (_vulfdr)ll L.L.C. Provision for decommissioning costs = 45,899
income zo0=3 20322 Zo=! =022 , - )

The movement of provision for decommissioning costs is as follows
Revenue 468,330 - 724,148 711,201
Interest income 5.256 - - - zo=3 2022
Depreciation and amortisation (28,304 - 171,764) (148.639)
Interest expense (3.078) - (14.688) (19.435) Balance at 1 January 45,899 45,669
Other operating expenses Ca=8,837) - a97.517) (507,008) Provision made during the year - -
Income tax expense (160) - 4.018) (2.504) Unwinding of provision for decommissioning costs 180 230
Profit for the period 13,20 - 36,161 33.615 Disposal of a subsidiary 46,079) -
Total comprehensive income 13,207 = 36,161 33.615 Balance at 31 December - 45.800

b) Individually immaterial joint ventures

In addition to the interests in the investments disclosed above, the Group also has interests in a number of individually
immaterial joint ventures that are accounted for using the equity method.

zo=3 2022
Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial joint ventures 15,155 12,078
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of profit 081 4,644
Dividends received (3,920) (1,567)
Disposal (3.537) -
8,679 15.155
11. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial investments are as follows:
zo=3 2022
Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
- Quoted debt securities (i) 133,004 123,043
- Quoted equity securities (i) 206,527 171,538
- Quoted shares in Qatari public shareholding companies 120,721 143.604
469.34a= 438,185
Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI)
- Quoted debt securities (i) 334,696 284,367
- Managed funds 33,251 22,222
- Unquoted shares = 3
367,949 306,592
[©) These are acquired and incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing them in the near term or

to take advantage of short term market movements.
5) Quoted debt securities at FVOCI are with an original maturity of ranging between one to nine years.
) Financial investments at FVTPL and FVOCI, except unquoted shares, have been valued using Level 1
measurement basis and there have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements.

C
C

Financial investments are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

As per the contractual agreement with Qatar Energy (Iessor), the Group has to return the leased facilities in their original
condition at the end of the lease term. The Group has assessed its contracts and recognised provisions for the costs of
dismantling, installations and restoring leased labour camps. The labour camps mainly consists of land, accommodation

ommon areas including offices, mess halls and other associated facilities. This provision relates to the Groups
subsidiary Amwaj which was disposed of during the year.

21. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

zo=3 2022
Balance at 1 January 112,028 101,259
Provision made during the year 16,236 24,625
Payments made during the year (15,571) (13.856)
Disposal of subsidiary 32,025) -
Balance at 31 December 80,668 112,028

The provision for employees’ end of service benefits is included in salaries and other benefits in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive inco

22, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

z0=23 2022
Trade payables 387,865 290,773
Accrued expenses 240,901 374,784

Deposits 1349 20,227
Accrued social fund contribution 9,790 7,251
638,705 693,035

23. DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors has proposed a final cash dividend of QR 0.15 per share amounting to QR 279 for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: QR 185.8 million). The proposed final cash dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023
will be submitted for formal approval at the Annual General Meeting.

During the period, the shareholders approved dividend amounting to QAR 0.10 per share. Below is the movement in

zoz= zozz
3 dividends payable during the year:
Non-current assets 367,949 306,502 zo0=23 zo==
Current assets 469,342 438,185
837.20= 744777 Balance at 1 January 48,619 50,429
Movement in provision for financial investments were as follows: Dividends declared during the year 185,841 -
Dividends paid during the year (187,381) (1,810)
zo=3 2022 Balance at 31 D 47.079 48,619
Balance at 1 January 4274 7.898 24. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES
Provision reversed during the year 237 (3,624)
Balance at 31 December 2511 4.274 The Group, in the ordinary course of business, carries out transactions with other business enterprises that fall within the
definition of related partios As per International Accounting Standard (1AS) 24 "Related Party Disclosuros”.
The balances with related parties as at the year-end and the transactions during the year, are disclosed as follows:
@) ransactions with related parties
12. INVENTORIES Transaction with related parties during the year are as follows
zo=3 zoz22 zo=3 2022
Name of the entity Relationship Revenue Expenses Revenue Expenses
Spare parts 494.303 432,013
Catering inventories - 14,346 QatarEnergy Shareholder 1,070,393 30,659 1,161,408 46,409
aoa.303 446.359 QatarGas Operating Company Other related
Less: Provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventories (53.952) (53,189) Limited part; 189,301 345 59,339 3,038
AN a1 303.170 Qatar Fuel Company (WOQOD) Other related
Q.P.S.C. party 32,191 A7T7TO 62,840 91,185
Inventories consumed during the year are recognized as expenses in 'Cost of sales’ (Note 26). Qatar Petrochemical Company Other related
Movement in provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventories during the year were as follows: (QAPCO) Q.P.J.S.C. part; 71,499 - 38,301 -
Qatar Fertiliser Company Other related
zo=23 2022 (QAFCO) Q.P.S.C. party 53,738 3,735 47,257 3,303
Other related
Balance at 1 January 53,180 71,877 Oryx GTL Limited party 11,723 = 11,105 -
Provision made during the year 763 1,554 . Other related
Provision utilised during the year - (20,242 North Oil Company | party SELHIELD - 111,304 -
Balance at 31 December 53.952 53.180 Gulfdrill L.L.C. oot venture 310,590 - 302,114 -
N s ‘ N B s - . - N . Others part; ©1,0921 58,06 179,469 4.411
The movement in provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventories is included in 'General and administrative expenses' oz s Taos TS

(Note 29).
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®) Due from related parties — Trade receivables
Relationship 2023 2022

Name of the entity
QatarEnergy Shareholder 257,658 205,273
Oryx GTL Limited Other related party > 200
Qatargas Operating Company Limited Other related party 128,410 126,226
Gulfdrill L.L.C. Joint venture 227,263 240,605
Qatar Fuel Company (WOQOD) Q.P.S.C. Other related party = 16,881
North Oil Company Other related party 17,672 22,706
Seef Limited Other related party - -
Qatar Fertiliser Company (QAFCO) Q.P.S.C. Other related party - 24,801
Ras Laffan Olefins Limited Other related party o -
Gasal Q.S.C. Other related party - -
Others Other related party 5,647 34,027

636,650 671,219

The above balances are of trading nature, bear no interest or securities and are receivable on due date as per respective
contracts, which is less than 12 months from the reporting date. These balances also include accrued revenues which are
not yet billed to customers at year end.

(€9) Due to related parties — Trade payables
Relationship 2023 2022

Name of the entity
QatarEnergy Shareholder 8,590 9,636
Amwaj Equity investee 19,691 -
Qatar Fuel Company (WOQOD) Q.P.S.C. Other related party 5,215 7,354
Others (1) Other related parties 3,490 3,905

36,986 20,805
Other related parties represent entities controlled or jointly controlled by QatarEnergy (shareholder).
(1) This includes balance pertaining to accruals of Board of Directors' retainer and attendance allowance.
=) Except (1), above balances are of trading nature, bear no interest or securities and are payable on demand.
@ Remuneration of key management personnel

2023 2022

Board of Directors allowances 3,800 2,660
Other key management personnel 20,850 27,757

25. REVENUE

25.1 REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH COSTUMERS

The Group mainly generates revenue from the aviation, drilling, rig management and insurance and reinsurance services.
@ Revenues from contracts with customers

In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary major service lines and timing
of revenue recognition.

2023 2022
*Revenue from drilling and related services
Drilling services 1,018,754 927,514
Management services 310,590 302,822
1,329,344 1,230,336
*Revenue from aviation services
Transportation services 909,685 790,962
Operation services 80,838 82,710
Supply of spare parts 42,133 39,401
Trainings services 2,591 2,379
1,035,247 915,452
2,364,591 2,145,788
2023 2022
*Revenue by geographic locations
Qatar 1,926,140 1,806,830
Turkiye 301,547 231,467
Others 136,904 107,491
2,364,591 2,145,788

*Management has further disaggregated revenue compared to the prior year to improve the presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Unsatisfied long-term contracts
The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligations resulting from fixed-price long-term contracts:

2023 2022

Aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to long-term contracts

that are partially or fully unsatisfied as at 31 December 2,070,710 3,103,183

Management expects that 50% of the transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations as of 31 December
2023 will be recognised as revenue during the next reporting period (QAR 1.03 billion). The 42% (QAR 0.87 billion) will
be recognised in the 2025 financial year and remaining 14% (QR 0.15 billion) will be recognised in the following years.

All other contracts are for periods of one year or less or are billed based on time incurred. As permitted under IFRS 15,
the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

25.2  INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS

Year ended 31 D 2022
Liability for remaining coverage (LRC) Liability for incurred claims (LIC)
Excluding loss Excluding RA for RA for non-
Loss p non-| ial risk fi ial risk Total
Insurance contracts issued:
Opening Insurance Contract Liabilities 80,705 - 880,863 67,152 1,028,719
Insurance Revenue (887,784) - (887,784)
Insurance Service expenses
Incurred claims and other directly attributable expenses - - 689,910 53,323 743,232
Changes that relate to past service - adjustments to the LIC - - (114,158) (40,369) (154,526)
Losses (Reversal) of onerous contract - 6,047 - - 6,047
Insurance acquisition cash flows amortization 65,935 - - - 65,935
Service expenses 65,935 6,047 575,752 12,954 660,689
Service result (821,849) 6,047 575,752 12,954 (227,096)
finance expenses - - (7,891) 553 (7,338)
Total changes in the of profit or loss and OCI (821,849) 6,047 567,861 13,507 (234,434)
Cash flows
Premiums received 922,002 - - - 922,002
Claims and other directly attributable Expenses paid - - (569,256) - (569,256)
Insurance acquisition cash flows paid (67,326) - - - (67,326)
Total cash flows 854,676 (569,256) 285,420
Closing Contract Liabilities 113,532 6,047 879,467 80,659 1,079,705
COST OF SALES
zo=3 2022
Staff salaries and related costs 697,202 619,107
Depreciation of machinery and equipment 346.593 343,643
Depreciation of Right of Use assets 3,408 3.408
Other Direct costs 715,401 668,514
1.76=2.78a 1.634.852

The cost of sales note has been disaggregated compared to prior year to improve the presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

27, OTHER INCOME

zo=3 2022
Rental income 15,494 11,994
Income tax benefit recognized pursuant to MOU 5.723 5.688
Profit distribution from managed investment funds 1,655 3,652
Dividend income 4,928 3.543
Miscellaneous incom 19,463 2,526

47,263 27,403

28. OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET

zo=3
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 17.806
™Mi 3

This majorly includes net foreign exchange loss.

29. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

zo=3
Salaries and other benefits 97,307
Depreciation of property and equipment (Note 6.2) 4.6a5
Legal and professional expenses a=z.350
Service fe: ~.a1a
Public relations and advertisement expenses 3,454
Communication expenses 863
Board of Directors' allowances 3,800
Repairs and maintenance expenses 1,406
Travel expense: 1,850
Qatar Exchange and QCSD expense 1,024

ating and stationery expenses 331
Miscellaneous expenses

The Group incurred the below fees from the auditor of the Group (PricewaterhouseCoopers) for the year:

zo=3
Audit fee .366
Other assurance services 300
Total recurring Group fees 1.766

30. INCOME TAX

In light of the provisions of the Qatar Income Tax Law No. 24 of 2018 and subsequent Executive Regulations, on 4
February 2020, Qatar Energy (Sharcholder), Ministry of Finance and the General Tax Authority (GTA) reached an
agreement through a Memorandum of Understanding ("the MOU") which provided a mechanism for the settlement of
the income tax liability of subsidiaries and joint ventures (included in the said MOU) of certain companies listed on Qatar
Exchange. All four of the Group's local subsidiaries (Note 1) were included in the said MOU, according to which the income
tax liability of the subsidiaries would ultimately be borne by Ministry of Finance. However, as per the MOU, the Groups
income tax from the local subsidiaries will be settled by the Ministry of Finance. Further, as per subsequent clarifications
received from GTA, the subsidiaries assessed that they are taxable only on the profits attributable to the foreign
shareholders of the Group.

31. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share has been calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by
the adjusted weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there were no dilutive effects on earnings.

zo=3 202z
Profit attributable to owners of the Group 391,785 302,312
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding at

31 D mber (in shares) (Note 16) 1,858.408,690 1,858,408,600

Basic and diluted carnings per share

(expressed in QR per share) Oo.211 ©.163
25.2.1  Analysis by remaining coverage and incurred claims for reinsurance contracts i
3=2. COMMITMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023 Commitments
Remaining coverage Incurred claims = 2022
Excluding loss Loss recovery Excludmg RA for RA for non- Capital commirments (1) = LGl
p p ial risk financial risk Total (i) These relates to the commitments for the acquisition of aircraft.
- OPE T 3 SEG INTS
Reinsurance contracts held: 33 PRERATING SEGMENTS
Opening Reinsurance Contract Assets (711,896) 2,964 1,322,580 54,798 668,446 Feparaely betauat thoy redoire Qitioront teonnolomy and markeiing simtonics and ales Tncorpormied ne separnie loaal
entities. For each of the segments, the Board of Directors reviews internal management reports on at least a quarterly
basis. The following summary describes the operations of each reportable segment:
Reinsurance Service expenses able segment Operation
Rei expense (661,393) - (661,393) Insurance Provides insurance and reinsurance services in Qatar
Aviation rovides heli T tran rtation servi hrough 1 h alf ion i a, ark Y
Amounts recoverable for incurred claims and other expenses - - 196,879 12,957 209,836 avie Mo oi‘fo, nd hadias The Aiation gn":\:i e e i oo el a?-)r?g Pharewts
K g Helicopters Company and its subsidiaries and joint ventures.
Loss-recovery on onerous underlying contracts and adjustments o 17,702 - - 17,702 Drilling Provides drilling and ancillary services in Qatar.
Changes to amounts recoverable for incurred claims - - 155,816 61,189 217,005
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers for incurred claims - 17,702 352,695 74,146 444,543 Amwaj Head office
Equity and
Net income or expense from rei held (661,393) 17,702 352,695 74,146 (216,850) Accounting - Discontinued Intercompany
Finance income from reinsurers contracts held - - 50,949 2,857 53,806 For the year ended and as at 31 December 2023  Insurance Aviation Drilling Catering _operations liminati Total
Effect of changes in non-performance risk of reinsurers g B 990 - 990 Timing of i
- n 661 o o6 50 6% iming of revenue recognition
Total changes in the of income (661,393) 7,76 404,634 77,003 (162,054) Ata pointin time ) M ) ) ) ) e
Over time - 993,114 1,329,344 - - - 2,322458
Cash flows Insurance revenue 1,173,899 o ° ° ° - 1,173,899
Premiums paid net of ceding commissions and other directly Segment revenue 1,173,899 1,035,247 1,329,344 - - - 3,538,490
. 5 521,692 - - - 521,692
attributable expenses paid Inter-segment revenue o o > > > > -
Recoveries from rei - - (252,418) - (252,418) External revenues 1,173,899 1,035,247 1,329,344 = = - 3,538,490
Total cash flows 524,692 Eszi41h) - 2674 S fit before t 102,657 343,461 (37:874) 4,896 (24,237) 1,793 400,696
- 8L 20.666 5 180 666 g profit before tax , y g 3 5 ) A
Closing Contract Assets (851,597) X 1,474,79 131,801 7751 Adiusted EBITDA Pt 415,185 G : : o) o
Finance income 31,794 11,810 189 - - 26,643 70,436
Year ended 31 December 2022 Finance costs = (1,441) (203,821) = o - (205,262)
Remaining coverage Incurred claims Depreciation and amortization (4:345) (82,093) (250,299) o - (14,501)  (351,238)
Cost of sales (1,103,743) (627,952) (1,126,104) @ - (5:469)  (2,863,268)
Excluding loss Loss recovery Excluding RA for RA for non- General and administrative expenses (32,824) (66,734) (71,939) = o (21,051)  (192,548)
component component non-financial risk financial risk Total Other Income 6,588 13,076 16,905 - - 10,694 47,263
. Other gains/(losses) - net - (17,142) (1,369) - - (752) (19,263)
Rem.surance contracts held: Income tax expense (2,380) (6,701) - - = = (9,081)
Opening Contract Assets (555:292) - 1,190,648 42,545 677,901 Other material non-cash items:
Provision of impairment losses on financial assets 119 (1,460) = = = = (1,341)
Reinsurance Service expenses Impairment loss on property and equipment = = (2,202) - - - (2,202)
expense (501,488) - - - (501,488) gﬁhﬁffw dimpairment losses & . 0 g o 3
Amounts recoverable for incurred claims and other expenses - - 334,600 25,646 360,246 accaorfu;)tefieisr?v‘essta:es impairment losses from equity : it A G : : S
Loss-recovery on onerous underlying contracts and adjustments - 2,964 - - 2,064 Investments in equity accounted investees . 8,679 31,854 349,519 390,052
Changes to amounts recoverable for incurred claims - - 30,831 (13,837) 16,994 (b) Adjusted EBITDA -
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers for incurred claims - 2,064 365,431 11,809 380,204 Adjusted EBITDA reconciles to operating profit before
income tax as follows:

Net income or expense from rei contracts held (501,488) 2,064 365,431 11,809 (121,284) Tptal Ad]usted EBITDA 75,208 415185 416,057 : ° (349) QT
" n n Finance income 31,794 11,810 189 = - 26,643 70,436
Finance (expense) income from reinsurers contracts held (20,289) 444 (19,845) Finance costs - (1,441) (203,821) - - - (205,262)
Effect of changes in non-performance risk of reinsurers - - 1,345 - 1,345 Depreciation and amortisation (4,345) (82,093) (250,209) - - (14,501)  (351,238)

Total changes in the of income (501,488) 2,964 346,487 12,253 (139,784) . ..
zroﬂt before income tax from continuing 102,657 343,461 (37,874) - - 11,793 420,037
perations
Cash flows
Premiums paid net of ceding commissions and other directly L
n ¢ y 344,885 - - - 344,885 Amwaj Equity Head office and
attributable expenses paid Accounting- Discontinued  Intercompany
Recoveries from reinsurance - - (214,556) - (214,556) For the year ended and as at 31 December 2022 Insurance _Aviation Drilling Catering perati liminati Total
Total cash flows 344,885 (214,556) - 130,329
Closing Reinsurance Contract Assets (711,895) 2,964 1,322,579 54,798 668,446 Timing of revenue recognition
. .. . . . Ata point in time - 39,401 - - - - 39,401
25.2.2  Analysis by remaining coverage and incurred claims for insurance contracts Overtime . 876,051 1,284,035 . _ _ 2,160,086
Insurance revenue 887,784 - - - - - 887,784
Segment revenue 887,784 915,452 1,284,935 - - - 3,088,171
Year ended 31 December 2023 Inter-segment revenue - (1,610) (52,989) - - - (54,599)
Liability for remaining coverage (LRC) Liability for incurred claims (LIC) External revenues 887,784 913,822 1,231,946 - - - 3,033,552
Excluding loss ExcludingRAfor  RA for non-financial Segment profit before tax 71174 309,517 (89,996) - 726 24,601 316,112
Loss financial risk risk Total Adjusted EBITDA 56,966 386,184 369,056 - - 26,377 838,583
Finance income 17,818 6,379 1185 - - 10,435 35,817
Insurance contracts issued: Finance costs - (833) (179,445) - - (97 (180,376)
Opening Insurance Contract Liabilities 113,532 6,047 879,467 80,659 1,079,705 Depreciation and amortisation (3,610) (82,213) (280,792) - - (12,024) (378,639)
Insurance Revenue (1,173,899) 5 5 5 (1,173,899) Costofsales (781,973) (540,944) (1137,597) - - 43,689 (2,416,825)
General and administrative expenses (63,877) (48,095) (73,928) - - 19,787 (166,113)
I Ser Other Income 19,303 8,275 2,523 - - (2,697) 27,403
TISUANCE SErvice expenses Other gains/(losses) - net (23,948) (602) (1,702) (26,252)
Incurred claims and other directly attributable expenses - - 393,095 21,324 414,419 Income tax expense (867) (13,047) R R R R (13,914)
Changes that relate to past service - adjustments to the LIC - - 288,808 76,119 364,927 Other material non-cash items:
Losses (Reversal) of onerous contract - 46,884 - - 46,884 Provision of impairment losses on financial assets 3,353 - - - - - 3353
Insurance acquisition cash flows amortization 60,661 - - - 60,661 Impairment loss on property and equipment - - - - - - (2202)
Insurance Service expenses 60,661 46,884 681,003 97,443 886,891 Wﬂ, et loses fom e
Insurance Service result (1,113,238) 46,884 681,903 97,443 (287,008) are oftesuls nd impairmentloses from equly - 4643 12,934 - - 17578
Insurance finance expenses - - 40,857 4,057 44,914 in equity d investees - 15,155 12,033 - - 28,088
Total changes in the of profit or loss and OCI (1,113,238) 46,884 722,760 101,500 (242,094) (b) Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA reconciles to operating profit before
Cash flows income tax as follows:
. . 1 . . . 1,2 Total Adjusted EBITDA 56,966 386,184 369,056 - - 26,377 838,583
Premiums received 1,237,595 1237595 . n
. ) . . Finance income 17,818 6,379 1,185 - - 10,435 35,817
Claims and other directly attributable Expenses paid - . (774,957) : (774,957) Finance costs . (833) (179,445) . . ©7) (180,376)
Insurance acquisition cash flows paid (48,373) - - - (48,373) Depreciation and amortisation (3,610) (82213)  (280,792) - - (12,024) (378,639)
Total cash flows 1,189,222 = (774,957) = 414,265 Profit before income tax from continuing 174 309,517 (89,996) - - 24,601 315,386
Closing Insurance Contract Liabilities 189,516 52,931 827,270 182,159 1,251,876 operations
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34. FINANCE COSTS
34.1 FINANCE INCOME
2023 2022
Interest income 0,436 35,81
70,436 35,817
34.2 FINANCE COSTS
2023 2022
Finance charges paid for lease liabilities 202 535
Interest and finance charges paid/payable for financial liabilities not at fair
value through profit or loss 205,060 179,841
205,262 180,376

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS- FAIR VALUE

The fair value of financial investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined by reference
to quoted market bid prices for assets and offer prices for liabilities at the close of business at the end of the reporting
period.

For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arm's length transactions, reference to the current market value of another
instrument which is substantially the same and/or discounted cash flow analysis. For discounted cash flow techniques,
estimated future cash flows are based on management's best estimates and the discount rate used is a market related rate
for a similar instrument.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The carrying value of the financial assets and liabilities approximates their
fair values. The estimated fair values of the Group's major financial instruments are provided in the tables below:

4) Other reclassifications

During the period, the Group performed an exercise to determine if the presentation of the consolidated financial
statements is in accordance with IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”. This exercise resulted in reclassification
of certain line items in the consolidated financial statements. The comparative figures have been reclassified in order to
conform with the presentation for the current period. Such reclassifications did not have any impact on the previously
reported equity and profits.

a) Related party, contract assets and trade receivable/payable

During the year, management has reclassified due from/due to related parties and contract assets (current) to be
presented within trade and other receivables/payable in the consolidated statement of financial position as these were
trading in nature. This change did not impact the comparative total assets, total liabilities, net assets or cash flows.

b) Other current assets

During the year, management has reclassified prepayments and advances to be presented separately from Trade and
other receivables in the consolidated statement of financial position as the prepayments and advances are not financial
assets. This change did not impact the comparative total assets, total liabilities, net assets or cash flows.

¢) Other bank balances

During the year, management has reclassified restricted cash balances to be presented separately from Cash and cash
equivalents balances in the consolidated statement of financial position as the amount represented restricted cash which
does not meet the definition of cash and cash equivalents. This change did not impact the comparative total asset, total
liabilities or net assets. Equally this did not affect the cash flow statement as the cash flow statement historically reconciled
only cash and cash equivalents.

d) Financial instruments
During the year, management has restated the prior year fair value gains on investment securities at FVPL from “net gain
on sale of financial investments” to the correct line item “Fair value gain on investment securities at fair value through
profit or loss” shown separately. In addition, fair value gains on FVOCI debt investments recycled to profit or loss from
other comprehensive income on disposal of the investments have been presented on a separate line in profit or loss.

Total Fair 5) Recognition of deferred tax
FVTPL FVOCI Carrying value value
31 December 2023 Management has recpgnised a previously omitt(_ed defe.r_red tax liability during the_ year and restated the comparative
Assets figures in the consolidated statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
Cash and bank balances = = 577,186 577,186 577,186 income.
Short-term investments - = 718,793 718,793 718,793
Trade and other receivables - - 870,544 870,544 870,544 . L.
Financial investment A IO z 837,202 837,202 The effect of these restatements on the statement of financial position and the statement of profit or loss and other
269,343 367,949 2,166,523 3,003,815 3,003,815 comprehensive income is summarised below:
Liabilities
Loans and borrowings - = 4,406,830 4,406,830 4,406,830 ) . .
Trade and other payables - - 638,705 638,705 638,705 Effect on the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022:
Dividends payable = = 47,079 47,079 47,079
- - 5,002,614 5,092,614 5,092,614
Previously IFRS 17 . .
reported (Note3.z) ~ Restatement-1 2 -3 4 “ab e T Restated
Amortized Total Fair
FVTPL FVOCI cost Carrying value value .
Right-of-use assets 27,731 - 21,840 - - - - - - 49.571
31 December 2022 ;):d fer::-:l r;:;::;d parties 759,940 (88,721) - - - (671,219) - - - -
Assets receivables 799,656 (320,869) - - - 671,219 (120,833) - - 1,029,173
Cash and bank balances - - 396,447 396,447 396,447 Other current assets - - - - - - 120,833 - - 120,833
Short-term investments - - 746,126 746,126 746,126 Reinsurance contract
Trade and other receivables - - 1,029,173 1,029,173 1,029,173 assets 1,001,277 (422,831) - - - - - - - 668,446
Financial investment: 438,185 306,592 - 744.777 744.777 Other bank balances - - - - - - - 48,619 - 48,619
438,185 306,592 2,171,746 2,016,523 2,916,523 Cash and cash
equivalents 396,447 - - - - - - (48,619) - 347,828
. P Foreign currenc
Liabilities . translation reserve (71,371) - - 44,203 - - - - 117 (25,961)
Loans and borrowings - - 4,368,055 4,368,055 4,368,055 Retained earnings 350,550 57,803 21,840 (44,203 , , R R (20,746) 1365244
Trade and other payables - - 693,035 693,035 693,035 Deferred tax liabilities - N N - - - - - 19,629 19,629
Dividends payable - - 48,619 48,619 48,619 Loans and borrowings 1,655,607 - - - 78,823 - - - - 1734,430
- - 5,109,709 5,109,709 5,100,700 Trade and other payables 1,046,056 (297,271) - - (78.823) 23,073 - - - 693,035
. . Due to related parties 27,812 (4,739) - - - (23,073) - - - -
Fair value hierarchy Insurance contract
liabilities 1,668,009 (588,304) - - - - - - - 1,079,705
The fair value of financial instruments approximates their carrying values.
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation Effect on the lid d stat of fi 1 position as at 1 January 2022:
technique:
Previously IFRS 17 (Note .
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. reported 3.2) Restatement-1 -3 -an -ab -ac -5 Restated
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, Right-of-use assets 36,202 - 20,372 - - - - - 65,664
either directly or indirectly. Contract assets 6,514 - - - (6,514) - - - -
Due from related parties 686,354 (8,839) - - (677.515) - - - -
Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that is not based on Trade and other receivables 694,994 (267,366) - - 684,029 (102,859) - - 1,008,798
observable market data. Other current assets - - - - - 102,859 - - 102,850
Other bank balances - - - - - - 48,619 - 48,619
At the reporting date, the Group held the following financial investments measured at fair value. Reinsurance contract assets 757,382 (79,481) - - - - - - 677,901
Cash and cash equivalents 349,407 - - - - - (48,619) - 300,788
Level 1 Level = Level 3 Total Foreign currency translation
reserve (55.836) - - - - - - 1,117 (54,719)
31 December 2023 Retained earnings 998,204 61,551 29,372 - - - - (11,913) 1,077,214
Assets measured at fair value Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - - - 10,796 10,796
Financial investments at FVTPL 469,343 = = 469,343 Loans and borrowings 632,704 N - 41,452 - - - - 674,156
Financial investments at FVOCI 367,949 = = 367,949 Trade and other payables 831,273 (221,696) - (41,452) 34,823 - - - 602,048
837,202 - - 837,202 Due to related parties 44,507 (9,684) - - (34823 - - - -
Insurance contract liabilities 1,214,575 (185,857) - - - - - - 1,028,718
31 December 2022
Assets measured at fair value
Financial investments at FVTPL 438,185 - - 438,185 . P
Financial investments at FVOCT 306.580 _ 5 306,50 Effect on the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as at 31 December 2022:
744,774 - 3 744,777 Balances relating to
Previously iscontinued
During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 reported IFRS 17(Note3.2) i -1 .2 -4 5 Restated
fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements. =
Revenue 3,665,539 (903,331) (616,420) - - - - 2,145,788
Costof sales (2,992.875) 769,751 588,272 - - - - (1634,852)
36. SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Gross profit from non- insurance op 672,664 (133,580) (28,148) - - - - 510,936
This note provides certain information related to the Group 's unconsolidated financial position, and profit or loss and Insurance revenue - 887,784 - - - - - 887,784
other comprehensive income as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023 and its comparative year. The complete set Insurance service expense - (660,689) - - - - - (660,689)
of separate financial statements of the Group prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard =27 !
'Separate Financial Statements' (IAS 27) are issued separately. This information is provided only to assist the Group in Net expense from reinsurance contracts held - (121,084) - - - - - (121,284)
its reporting to the Qatar Financial Markets Authority (Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (“ICOFR™)). Tnsurance service result A 105,81 ) N ) : _ 105,811
(@ Separate statemnent of financial position Gross profit and net insurance service results 672,664 (27,769) (28,148) - - - - 616,747
2023 2022 Fi p insurance contracts
ASSETS lr5§”9d ) o - . 7338 - . . - . 7.338
Non-current assets ’ P
Furniture and fittings 114 72 held - (18,500) - - - - - (18,500)
Investment property 225,300 227,092 - T
Financial investments 31,787 26,708 Net finance income - (11,162) - - - - - (11,162)
Investment in associate 344,624 - Otherincome / loss) 41,391 - (866) - - (13,122) - 27,403
Investments in subsidiaries 2,077,215 2,574,398 (61,647) - - - - - (26,252)
Total non-current assets 2,679,040 2,828,360 Other expenses 047 35,39% 25
General and administrative expenses (218,520) 31,759 20,648 - - - - (166,113)
Current assets P n debt securi ol
Trade and other receivables 12,548 10,517 Nelgalnscnmw:snnentsln el lsecum]emeasur
Other bank balances 47,079 48,619 at FVOCI reclassified to profit or loss on disposal - - - - - 3529 - 3,529
Short-term investments* 484,736 - i on inve it -
Cash and cash equivalents* ] 256,073 Flinrva:lue ge;im onl investment securities at fair value . )
Total current assets 558,038 216.100 through prfior lss 3 - - - - - (25.897) - (25,897)
TOTAL ASSETS 3,237,078 3,244,460 Effect of gain on net monetary position IAS 29 (11.411) - - - 32,171 - - 20,760
203 ponn Net impairment (loss) / reversal on financial
= assls (776) 3513 52 - - % - 335
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Operating profit 421,701 (3,659) (7,845) - 32,171 - - 442,368
EQUITY
Share capital 1,858,409 1,858,409 . .
Legal reserve 23,028 23,028 Finance income 38,387 - (2570) - - - - 35817
Retained earnings 1,279,168 1,275,513 Finance costs (181,926) - 1,550 - - - - (180,376)
Total equity 3,161,505 3,157,850 T ts—net (143539) N (1,020) N N N N (144,559)
LIABILITIES Share of net profits of equity accounted investees 7,571 - - - - - - 17,577
Cur;en(; liabilgries Profit before income tax 295,739 (3,659) (8,865) - 32,171 - - 315,386
Dividends payable 47,079 48,619 Income tax expense 5,688 - 608 - - 88 1391
Trade and other payables 28,494 38,000 P _ . (5688) (8539 (13914
Total current liabilities 5,573 86,619 Profit for the year from.contlnulng operation 290,050 (3,659) (8,257) - 32,171 - (8,833) 301,472
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,237,078 3,244,469 (Loss) / Profit from discontinued operation
attributable to the shareholders of the Company) - - 82 531 - - - 6
®) Separate statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income ;r il ) 56 5 ((753: o) 728
r the year 24 - 1) 2,171 - 2,1
2023 2022 ofit for the yea 90,050 3,059) 7:53! 32,17 ,033) 302,19
Dividend income 263,115 188,890 Profit for the year attributable to:
General and administrative expenses (25,361) (16,792) . - -
y . R
Other income 18,201 13,237 Sharcholders of the Company 290,165 (3,659) (7530) 3217 (8:833) 302312
Other expenses (752) (39,339) Non-controlling interests (114) - - - - - (114)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (82,559) - Net profit for the period 200,050 (3,659) - (7,531) 32,171 - (8,833) 302,198
Operating profit 172,644 145,996
Finance income 26,642 10,434
Finance costs = 7
Profit for the year 199,286 156,333
Other comprehensive income - - Effect on the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as at 31 December 2022:
Total comprehensive income for the year 199,286 156,333
Earnings per share Balances
Basic and diluted unconsolidated earnings per share (Qatari Riyal) 0.108 0.084 IFRS 17 (Note 3.2) relating to Restated
Basic and diluted consolidated earnings per share (Qatari Riyal) ©0.26 0.156 Previously 7(Note3. iscontinued
* In the prior year short term investment with a maturity more than 90 days have been reclassified in a separate line reported i 1 2 -4(d) 5
item Short Term Investment, as these do not meet the criteria of cash and cash equivalents.
Earnings per sh:
37- RESTATEMENTS arnings per share o
Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing -
Management has re-evaluated the accounting treatment of certain transactions and balances recorded in the consolidated operations attributable to shareholders of the Company 0156 (0.002) - (0.004) 0.013 - 0163
financial statements in the prior years to determine if such transactions and balances have been accounted for Basic and diluted earnings per share from discontinued R
appropriately under IFRS Accounting Standards (“IFRS™). operatons attributabl toshareholders ofthe Company (0.000) ) R R . R (0.000)
Summary of the effect of these restatements on the previously reported figures is as follows: Basic and diluted earnings per share from profit -
attributable to shareholders of the Company 0.156 (0.002) - (0.004) 0.013 - 0.163
Py} A ing for d issioning p ision:
The Group currently records a decommissioning provision in respect of various plots of land leased from a related party. Other comprehensive income
However, historically, the Group has recognized the decommissioning cost as an expense in profit or loss and the Financial investments at FVOCI - Change in FV (31432) - - - - 3529 - (27,903)
corresponding decommissioning provisions on the face of the statement of financial position. S " 3
Net foreign exchange difference on translation of -
IFRS 16 - Leases (“IFRS 16”) requires a lessee should include the amount of expected decommissioning as part of right of foreign operations (15,535) - - - 4,294 - 28759
use assets. Net instruments at FVOCI reclasified to profit or -

. . . . loss - - - - - 521 520
During the year the Group has reassessed its accounting treatment and based on the requirements of IFRS 16 has — (3529) (3529)
recognized the decommissioning provision as part of right of use assets, the corresponding effect on the previous years Other comprehensive income for the year, .
has been adjusted in retained earnings. The right-of-use asset is depreciated in profit or loss over the term of the lease net of tax (46,967) - - - 44,294 - (2,673)
within cost of sales. Total ive income for the year 243,083 ,659) - 33 76465 - 6,833) 299525
2) Application of IAS 29:

) Total comprehensive income / (loss) -

The Group has a subsidiary in Turkey and the functional currency of the subsidiary is Turkish Lira. As from 1 April 2022, attributable to:
the Turkish economy has been considered hyperinflationary based on the characteristics established by International
Accounting Standard 29, 'Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies' ('IAS 29"). The Group applied IAS 29 for Owners of the Company 243,197 (3659) - (7530 76465 - (8833) 299,639
the first time in the interim period ended 30 June 2022. Non-controlling interests (114) - - - - - - (114)
During the year, management reassessed the application of IAS 29 and noted the following: Total 243,083 (3,659) - 7,531) 76,463 - (8,833) 299,525
IAS 21- The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates- states that when amounts are translated into the currency of a Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the
non-hyperinflationary economy, comparative amounts shall be those that were presented as current year amounts in the eriod attributable to shareholders of the
relevant prior year financial statements (i.e. not adjusted for subsequent changes in the price level or subsequent changes p )
in exchange rates). Further, International Accounting Standard IAS =29- Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Company arises from:
Economies requires that the gain or loss on the net monetary position should be included in profit or loss. Continuing operations 242,358 - - - 76,465 - (8,833) 298,799

bt b au L " a N a a i d operations 725 - - (7,531) - - - 726
Consistent with the above requirements, management reassessed the application of IAS 2: uring the year and restate

o & Pr ° g ey 243,083 - - - 76.465 - (8,333) 299,525

prior period financial statements as follow:

- Management has revisited and consequently updated the calculation for initial application of IAS 29 between the
closing equity of the previous year and the opening equity of the current year. The Group has presented the
resultant combined effect of restating in accordance with IAS 20 and translation according to IAS 21 as a net change
in other comprehensive income (OCI)

<« The impact of the change in the consumer price index from the beginning of the first reporting period to the end
of the reporting period for non-monetary assets and liabilities has been reflected as net monetary gain arising from
hyperinflation in profit or loss instead of being recorded in retained earnings.

- Furthermore, as a result of these changes, the Group has reflected the “Net (loss)/gain arising from hyperinflation”
in the Statement of Profit or loss and other comprehensive income as part of the “Operating profit”.

3)  Reclassification of accrued interest to borrowings:

In the prior years accrued interest was included within ‘trade and other payables’. Management of the Group has
reclassified these balances from ‘trade and other payables’ to ‘loans and borrowings in order to reflect the nature of these
balances and also to realign the accounting for loans and borrowings with amortised cost accounting. The comparatives
of these balances have been reclassified accordingly.

The above restatements had no impact on operating, investing, or financing cash flows in aggregate.

Please scan the QR-code using asmart phone for easy
access to the full set of consolidated financial statements
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